
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA PAPERS FOR 
 

HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Date: Wednesday, 18 January 2023 
 

Time:  6.30 pm 
 

Place:  Committee Room 2 and 3, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford, M32 
0TH 

 
 

A G E N D A   PART I Pages  

 

1.  ATTENDANCES   

 

To note attendances, including Officers, and any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2.  MINUTES   

 
To receive and, if so determined, to agree as a correct record the Minutes of 

the meeting held on 19th December 2022. 
 

1 - 8 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 
Members to give notice of any interest and the nature of that interest relating 

to any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 
 

 

4.  QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC   

 
A maximum of 15 minutes will be allocated to public questions submitted in 

writing to Democratic Services (democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk) by 4 
p.m. on the working day prior to the meeting. Questions must be within the 
remit of the Committee or be relevant to items appearing on the agenda and 
will be submitted in the order in which they were received . 

 

 

5.  CANCER DIAGNOSIS   

 

To receive a report of the Director of Public Health. 
 
 

 

9 - 26 

Public Document Pack

mailto:democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk


Health Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 18 January 2023 

   
 

 

 

6.  ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE MISUSE   

 

To receive a report of the Consultant in Public Health and the Commissioning 
Support Officer. 
 

27 - 34 

7.  TRAFFORD LOCALITY URGENT CARE NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND 
CRITICAL APPRAISAL SCRUTINY   

 
To receive a report of the Programme Director Health and Care. 
 

35 - 104 

8.  ICS - UPDATE   

 

To receive a report of the Director of Finance NHS Trafford. 
 

105 - 110 

9.  WORK PROGRAMME 22/23   

 
For Members to consider the work programme and discuss items for 

consideration. 
 

111 - 112 

10.  URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)   

 
Any other item or items (not likely to disclose "exempt information") which, by 

reason of special circumstances (to be specified), the Chairman of the 
meeting is of the opinion should be considered at this meeting as a matter of 
urgency. 
 

 

 

11.  EXCLUSION RESOLUTION (REMAINING ITEMS)   

 
Motion   (Which may be amended as Members think fit): 

 
That the public be excluded from this meeting during consideration of the 
remaining items on the agenda, because of the likelihood of disclosure of 

“exempt information” which falls within one or more descriptive category or 
categories of the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, as amended by 

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, and 
specified on the agenda item or report relating to each such item respectively. 
 

 

 
 
SARA TODD 

Chief Executive 
 

 
Membership of the Committee 

 
Councillors M.P. Whetton (Chair), S. Taylor (Vice-Chair), A. Akinola, J. E. Brophy, 
S.J. Gilbert, B. Hartley, S. J. Haughey, J. Leicester, J. Lloyd, T. O'Brien, Mrs. P. Young, 

D. Acton (ex-Officio) and D. Western (ex-Officio). 
 



Health Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 18 January 2023 

   
 

 

Further Information 

For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact: 
 

Stephanie Ferraioli, Governance Officer 
Tel: 0161 912 2019 
Email: stephanie.ferraioli@trafford.gov.uk  

 
This agenda was issued on Tuesday, 10 January 2023 by the Legal and Democratic 

Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall; Talbot Road, Stretford, 
Manchester, M32 0TH  
 

WEBCASTING 
  

This meeting will be filmed for live and / or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s 
YouTube channel https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg 
the whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are confidential or exempt 

items. 
 

If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have consented to 
being filmed. By entering the body of the Committee Room you are also consenting to 
being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for 

webcasting and/or training purposes. If you do not wish to have your image captured or 
if you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer on the above contact number or email 

democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk  
 

Members of the public may also film or record this meeting. Any person wishing to 
photograph, film or audio-record a public meeting is requested to inform Democratic 
Services in order that necessary arrangements can be made for the meeting. Please 

contact the Democratic Services Officer 48 hours in advance of the meeting if you 
intend to do this or have any other queries. 

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg
mailto:democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

19TH DECEMBER 2022 

 

PRESENT 

 
Councillor M.P. Whetton (in the Chair),  

 

Councillors S. Taylor (Vice-Chair), A. Akinola, J.E. Brophy, S.J. Gilbert, B. Hartley,  

J. Leicester, J. Lloyd. 

 

 

In attendance 

 

Acting Corporate Director for Adult Social Care (Mrs. D. Eaton) 

Programme Director for Health and Care (Mr. T. Maloney) 

Director of Finance NHS Trafford (Mr. J. Gareth) 

Chief Operating Officer Manchester & Trafford Local Care (Mr. M. Edwards) 

Associate Director of Delivery and Transformation (Mrs. C. O’Driscoll)  

Altrincham Campaigner (Mrs J. Collins) 

Governance Officer (Ms. S. Ferraioli) 
 

 

1. ATTENDANCES 

 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor O’Brien, Slater, Acton and 

Western. 

 

2. DECLARATION OF INTERST 

Councillor Leicester and Brophy informed the Chair of their role in the NHS. 

 

3. MINUTES 

 

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 14th November 2022  

                        be noted as true and correct. 

 

4. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

None were received. 

 

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



5. INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM 

The Chair thanked everyone for attending the meeting which was rescheduled due to 

the By-Election for Stretford and Urmston and informed it was important to reschedule 

the meeting before the Christmas break so as not to lose the scope of the work of the 

Committee for the remainder of the municipal year.  

The Chair also informed that for tonight the Vice-Chair would chair the meeting to allow 

them to gain more experience in actually chairing meetings and the Vice-Chair 

proceeded to conduct the meeting for the evening. 

The Chair informed attendees of the slightly amended agenda for the night and 

directed them to follow the hard copy prepared for them and asked if all were happy 

to proceed which they were. 

The Director of Finance for NHS Trafford presented a verbal update on the Integrated 

Care System and recapped on the current landscape. He asked Members whether a 

more detailed paper would be preferred for the next meeting. 

The Director reminded Members that the ICS is made of two statutory elements the 

ICB (Integrated Care Board) that took over from the CCG and the ICP (Integrated Care 

Partnership) where the NHS body comes together with AGMA and other partners 

called the Greater Manchester Partnership where the strategy is agreed.   

Still not completely finalised is the actual role of the ICS but its functions are becoming 

clearer. There are still a lot of details that need working through to reach a clear view 

of the complete role of the body. 

At present the body is working out its final budget. A lot of work is also being done on 

the governance side. Decisions will be made to clarify whether the body will act as a 

joint committee or a sub-committee. A paper is going to the Locality Board and 

hopefully an agreement will be reached tomorrow which will be indication of more 

progress. There are at present many financial challenges, this is the same at national 

level and not specific to Greater Manchester. 

Councillors have had direct involvement with the ICS via the Locality Board but they 

can have an even greater impact via the Health and Wellbeing Board in contributing 

to setting the ICS strategy.  

Members were invited to attend further meetings and drop in sessions where they 

could witness the impact directly.  

Councillor Brophy asked how the scrutiny arrangement was proceeding across 

Greater Manchester and she was informed that each locality across Greater 

Manchester maintained their scrutiny but now there will also be one at Greater 

Manchester level.  The Director of Finance for NHS Trafford stated that he had not 

seen the details yet but he was aware that this was in the governance architecture.  

He will feedback on how Trafford fits into the ICS GM scrutiny design at future 

meetings. 

The Chair confirmed that a detailed report would be preferred at next meeting. 

Councillor Whetton expressed his understanding that this was a huge concept in 

budget terms and enquired whether there will be a borough level reporting and what 

Page 2



type of monitoring would be in place going forward.  He was informed that at present 

they had only received a draft budget and that details were still being finalised and that 

there will definitely be accounting at GM level. From April 2023, they will be able to 

report through what is known as inside budget on Trafford specifically and will be able 

to share this information on demand.  

Councillor Leicester asked how they were ensuring that local residents were not being 

disadvantaged in terms of minimum acute health providers and was informed that this 

had been a challenge for many years. Work is being carried out closely with colleagues 

from Manchester and Trafford despite the difference in approach. 

Councillor Gilbert also confirmed that a paper report would provide a better 

understanding especially about the budget position and challenges and how this 

impacts next year. She would prefer an update at future meetings on a regular basis. 

Councillor Akinola also stated that they found it difficult to do their role without any 

data and that they were looking forward to a detailed report. 

The Corporate Director for Adult Social Care stated that it was very helpful of Members 

to ask these type of questions as they work really hard to ensure the Trafford identity 

is really marked down. She proceeded to suggest that perhaps forming a joint Health 

Committee to meet once a year could be a productive next step.  The Chair agreed 

that this was a really good suggestion. 

 

RESOLVED:  

1) That a detailed report be presented at the meeting on 18th January 23. 

2) That consideration be given to the forming of a Joint Health Committee to 

meet once a year. 

 

6. URGENT CARE SURVEY 

The Programme Director Health and Care presented Members with an update on the 

work currently being carried out on the Urgent Care Review across Trafford.  Members 

were informed that the key places looked into and that Trafford residents use in 

Greater Manchester were the Altrincham Minor Injuries Unit and Manchester Royal 

Infirmary.  He informed that the analysis was carried out by ward and by condition.  

Councillor Leicester asked how they could explain how they looked into the attendance 

at these particular units given that for the last two years Altrincham Minor Injuries unit 

in particular, had been closed.  She was informed that the data looked at dated from 

2019 when the Altrincham Unit was open and in operation and when and where 

residents decided to attend when they had needed to access medical assistance 

during the period of closure.  Comparison was drawn between the data which included 

out of hours GPs too. 

The Chair thanked the team for their commitment to the work, however she asked how 

they proposed to convene the hard to reach groups given that the survey is an online 

service hosted by a partnership website. The Programme Director explained that they 

were very interested to hear from those members of the public who do not engage 

Page 3



online too and that they were working very closely with Trafford HealthWatch to ensure 

that via drop in sessions in each neighbourhood, they would reach as many local 

residents as possible.  They were also working on further plans by the end of the week 

to finalise details on a wider strategy. He stated that Councillors were more than 

welcome to attend any of the drop in sessions and he would welcome their 

engagement so they could observe directly how the views of the public were being 

collected. 

 

RESOLVED - That a detailed report be presented at the meeting on 18th  

                       January 23. 

 

7. AIDS AND UPDATATIONS 

The Chair stated that they thought this was a very comprehensive report. 

The Corporate Director for Adult Social Care introduced herself and presented the 

report which was commissioned to assess and address the backlog of work that had 

formed during the pandemic.  She stated that unfortunately during the pandemic the 

phone-lines initially had been left on and therefore a number of calls had been received 

and messages recorded which still needed to be resolved. Once service had been 

resumed after the Covid period, they started addressing all the calls received. It was 

felt that in a way this had been a good incident as it meant that patients could be 

reached that perhaps would only start to contact the service now. She informed 

Members that they have a very strong plan in place to address the backlog, issuing 

equipment which historically presented a long wait given the huge cost involved. The 

money saved as it were over the last two years can now be directed accordingly. 

Councillor Brophy thanked the Director for their report. She enquired about staffing 

and admin and equipment. She queried whether staff redeployed during the pandemic 

could now return to service and how this was being managed. She was informed that 

additional staff across the organisation was in employment now so tracking everyone 

presented a challenge and certainly would take some time. She was reassured that 

the additional bank staff brought in during the pandemic are all professionally qualified, 

however given the present budget pressures it is difficult to bring in new staff. 

The Director stated that once the backlog of work had been fully addressed they would 

be carrying out a full system review. 

Councillor Leicester wanted reassurance that all calls received had been responded 

to and she was informed that the priority was to ensure all calls received be addressed 

and that 800 members of staff were monitoring the self-referral line addressing 

urgency. 

Councillor Leicester stated that there was no self-referral line in Bolton for instance 

and that buying equipment in bulk across Greater Manchester would address some of 

the challenges faced in terms of reducing costs.  The Director informed that they were 

reviewing across Greater Manchester and that if an agreement could be reached this 

is certainly an area they would explore.  

Page 4



Councillor Gilbert enquired whether the pressure on the service was due to the 

national backlog solely. The Director stated that the profession of nursing was often in 

the press and that the specific backlog faced by the service now was only due to the 

pandemic and that they were confident to return to where they were prior to the 

pandemic in terms of service ability, however she reminded that there was always a 

risk given the type of service and the current budget pressures. 

Councillor Hartley stated that they found the report difficult to relate to, he echoed what 

Councillor Brophy stated earlier and he would prefer to receive a data chart so he 

could better relate to the information presented.  Perhaps this was a system that could 

be implemented for all future reports.   For instance, it was not clear who he would 

need to phone if he had a need to arrange for some aids and adaptations. 

The Director appreciated and noted the comment from Councillor Hartley and stated 

that the difficulty in sourcing equipment had improved greatly however it remained to 

clear why there was an increase in the demand for aids and adaptations, what were 

the causes.  During the pandemic, it had proven difficult to get the equipment from 

abroad and as a nation they had managed in terms of the ability for companies to 

produce equipment in country and also in terms of staffing levels. The NHS has indeed 

suffered during this period, however this is not the case now.   

Members were informed that there was a phone-line to ring if waiting for equipment 

and that patients are given a name of an officer to liaise with during the period of 

demand, installation and assessment of equipment. 

Members were also informed that a national enquiry into the pandemic had been 

launched and that the team would voice the views of Trafford.   

Councillor Leicester enquired about any contingency plans for the winter and she was 

informed that indeed there were contingency plans for the winter in terms of providing 

batteries for equipment as required etc. and that they had identified everyone on their 

list who use a six hour battery back-up operated equipment for instance and are 

liaising with energy providers and other energy companies who are required to provide 

support to vulnerable residents so once contacted they can visit and provide support 

straight away. 

 

RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 

 

8. DISCHARGE FROM HOSPITAL 

The Chief Operating Officer provided an overview informing that efforts were being 

made through the pandemic to align with the national thinking. Nationally the system 

is still inconsistent. The priority was to ensure that primary care support was being 

administered consistently across Trafford. They have now commissioned one medical 

practice, one group of GPs who have the right infrastructure with regular and 

consistent GP coverage, providing core care. 

Councillor Akinola asked what was Trafford doing differently from the rest of the 

country to get social care staff and was informed that the loss of care providers was 

still an issue.  This is a national problem, Trafford are not solely to blame for this. 

Page 5



Throughout the journey for people to go back home they try to ensure they use the 

same provider if possible, often people are in hospital for some time and so places 

cannot be held for that long otherwise nobody would get the care needed at the time 

required. At present, there are 26 home cares in the Trafford area.  

Councillor Leicester repeated that 87% of people are discharged to go home and felt 

that perhaps too many patients were being forced into that pathway. 

The Chief Operating Officer replied that they were continuing to build the care model 

in the whole and that he felt they were in a good place this year. He reminded that the 

pressures being faced were unprecedented, however if Councillor Leicester had a 

specific case in mind this could be looked at and lessons could be learnt. 

Councillor Leicester explained that she was referring to the figures mentioned in the 

virtual ward part of the report and would appreciate learning how this worked in terms 

of numbers and sizes.  The Chief Operating Officer informed that at present for 

example, there are 23 patients via Wythenshawe hospital with respiratory diseases 

and high probability of being readmitted so through the virtual ward they receive 

assistance and potentially remain at home without having to be readmitted to hospital. 

The Chief Operating Officer stated that the virtual ward could provide acute care and 

that they have an agreement beyond consultation for the sustainability of virtual wards 

in 3 localities across Greater Manchester.   

The Chair confirmed the success of the ward in North Manchester and looked forward 

to receiving information on the outcomes for the Trafford area. Perhaps, she said, it 

would be helpful to receive an illustrated patient story.  

Councillor Brophy stated that the officer had given the Committee a good picture of 

the current situation and enquired about any staffing issues, for instance how was the 

recruitment of therapists being managed?  

The Chief Operating Officer replied that they had home care packages in place.  They 

had discharged 35 patients during the pandemic where normally it would be only 19 

whereas last week they had discharged 65. This presented a lot of double cover 

requirement, they were managing at present but if the demand continues it will present 

a big problem. They are also recruiting from the voluntary sector to alleviate the 

pressure somewhat.  He stated it was important to note that every aspect of the NHS 

is currently under pressure. 

The Chair thanked the Officer for the innovative approach and stated that they looked 

forward to seeing the outcomes. 

The Chair proceeded to thank all Officers for their hard and impressive work and again 

reinforced that they were looking forward to receiving future detailed papers. 

 

RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 

 

 

 

Page 6



 

9. WORK PROGRAMME 

RESOLVED – That the work programme for the remainder of the municipal 

                        year be noted. 

 

10. URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY) 

None to be noted. 

 

11. EXCLUSION RESOLUTION (REMAINING ITEMS) 

None to be noted. 

 

 

The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm and finished 9.45 pm.  

 

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFORD COUNCIL  

 

Report to:  Health Scrutiny Committee  

Date:   18th January 2023   

Report for:             Information   

Report of:               Director of Public health 

 

 

Report Title 

 

 

Cancer Rates in Partington 

 

 

 

Summary 

 

The report outlines: 

• The involvement of the Cancer Registry in Partington  

• The latest data with regard to cancer rates in Partington 

• The reasons for this and what can be done to improve cancer rates 

• The current work being carried out to address the cancer rates in 

Partington 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Recommendation 

 

The Health Scrutiny Committee to: 

• Note the contents of the report including the work underway to improve 

cancer rates in Partington 

• Acknowledge that support is required from councillors in encouraging 

people to be cancer aware, attend screening appointments, support 

behaviour change and address any system issues. 

• Receive a follow-up report in 2024 with the results of the Cancer registry 

Review 

 

 

   

Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 

 

Name:  Eleanor Roaf  

Email:            eleanor.roaf@trafford.gov.uk 

                          

Background Papers:  

 

Cancer Rates in Partington 

 

Background 

In 2019 Trafford’s DPH asked Public Health England to review cancer rates in 

Partington following reports from a GP in Partington Central Practice that they were 

seeing an unusual number of people with cancer. Public Health England agreed that 

Page 10



rates were high, and asked the Cancer Registry to undertake a review to investigate 

whether there was a cancer cluster, and if so, what the likely causes might be.  The 

data used were from 2010-2017 as this was the latest available data from the Cancer 

Registry.  

The summary of the Cancer Registry’s review was as follows: 

• Age-standardised cancer incidence rates in the Partington Central Surgery 

vicinity from 2010-2017 were statistically significantly higher than the rates in 

NHS Trafford CCG and England as a whole.  

• The Partington Central Surgery vicinity has a high level of deprivation. 

Compared to the other ‘most deprived’ areas of NHS Trafford CCG, the 

Partington Central Surgery vicinity is less of an outlier, although rates are still 

high.  

• The profile of cancers at Partington looks typical for deprived areas, with the 

most common cancer being lung cancer. Although there are more cases of 

mesothelioma than average, numbers are very small, and this is not statistically 

significant. 

At the request of Trafford’s DPH the Cancer Registry has agreed to re-run their 

analysis in 2023/24 when more recent data will be available, to see if the higher rates 

persist.  It was agreed that the review should not be undertaken earlier as the 

pandemic may have had an impact on presentation and diagnosis of cancer. 

 

Purpose of the report 

To provide information to the Committee regarding cancer rates in Partington and 

consider what factors may be causing the elevated rates of the disease in this area.  

To consider what actions may be taken to address the cancer rates in Partington. 

To request the support of members of the Committee to tackle the factors underlying 

the raised cancer rates. 

Methodology 

Page 11



This report will review the latest available cancer data, evidence, and interventions to 

provide information about what actions can be taken to address cancer rates in 

Partington. 

The data used is limited by what has been published since the initial research took 

place. Data provided in the cancer registry has not been updated since 2019. 

Therefore, it is not possible to compare the data in the cancer cluster investigation 

document with new data directly. Therefore, other data that is available has been used. 

Once the Cancer Registry undertakes its follow up review in 2023/2024, more directly 

comparable data will be available. 

 

Trafford cancer rates 

The Cancer Registry standardised the data to take into account the younger age 

structure of the Partington population compared to Trafford and England. Combining 

data from the period from 2010 to 2017 they found that the overall age-standardised 

rate of cancer near Partington Central Surgery was statistically significantly higher 

than that of NHS Trafford CCG or England, as shown in the graph below. 

 

More recent data shows that Trafford’s under 75 mortality rate from 2017-19 from 

cancer considered preventable is 54.8 per 100,000 people (95% CI [48.9, 61.2]) . This 

is similar to the England average, which is 54.1 per 100,000 deaths (95% CI [53.7, 

54.4]) from cancer that are considered preventable.  

The under 75 mortality rate for all cancers from 2017-19 for Trafford is similar to the 

England average. It is 124.7 per 100,000 compared to 129.2 per 100,000. Trafford 

Page 12



ranks towards the 75th percentile which means that 25% of other Boroughs have 

results which are better than Trafford, however Trafford had the lowest rate in GM.  

 

 

  

54.1

54.8

58.6

63.4

64

65.3

69.8

75.4

79.2

80.3

82.8

91.1

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

England

Trafford

Stockport

Bury

Bolton

North West

Wigan

Rochdale

Oldham

Tameside

Salford

Manchester

Value per 100k People

A
re

a 
N

am
e

Under 75 mortality rate from cancer - Greater Manchester 
(2017-2019)

Page 13



West Primary Care Network 

For 2019/20 new cancer cases in the West of Trafford were 543 per 100,000 

population (95% CI [447, 653]). This is lower than Sale Central’s cancer incidence rate 

which is 658 but higher than all other primary care network (PCN) areas. There are 

several potential reasons for this including whether some practices are diagnosing 

fewer cancer cases, or there is a difference in the population so people in the West 

may be more at risk of cancer due to several factors, such as smoking or obesity, or 

there could be differences in the way the cancer data are recorded. 

Partington 

Looking at cancer incidence for Partington for all cancers for the period 2014-18 

Partington had a standardised incidence ratio (SIR) 1 of 133.3, where 100 is the 

expected number based on the National picture - which means there is a statistically 

significant higher number of new cases in Partington, 33.3% more cases than 

expected, even when the data has been adjusted for age and sex (i.e. the age of the 

population and proportions of males/females have been taken into account).  

Lung cancer has the highest number of new cases compared to the England average, 

with a standardised incidence ratio of 238.7. This difference is statistically significant. 

There are also higher rates of new cases of breast and colorectal cancer in Partington, 

SIR of 100.8 for breast and SIR of 123.2 for colorectal.  

The table below shows the mortality rates for lung cancer in Partington compared with 

Trafford, North West and England as a whole. 

 

 
1 The SIR is a ratio of the number of observed cancer cases in the study population (in this case Partington) to 
the number that would be observed (often called "expected") if the study population experienced the same 
cancer rates as an underlying population (in this case England) 

Page 14



 

 

The breast screening uptake is currently lower than the target in Partington at 30.7% 

in one practice and 28.10% in the other as of January 2022. Whilst the cancer 

incidence data is from 2014-18 it is possible that the cancer incidence rates reported 

are lower than the real number due to some cases not being picked up by screening.  

Causes of cancer 

Deprivation 

Deprivation is associated with cancer. Socio-economic drivers are closely linked to 

many cancers both in terms of driving disease but also the timeliness of diagnosis and 

access to care.  

Cancer Research UK’s 2020 report - Cancer in the UK 2020: Socio-economic 

deprivation – states that the starkest differences between the most and least deprived 

areas of the UK are in smoking-related cancer, like lung and laryngeal cancer. Rates 

of smoking-related cancers are 3 times higher for the most deprived populations 

compared to the least deprived. 

For some cancer types, people from more deprived communities are more likely to be 

diagnosed at a later stage, giving them fewer treatment options. They’re also 50% 

Page 15

https://www.cancerresearchuk.org/sites/default/files/cancer_inequalities_in_the_uk.pdf?_gl=1*uxkg0w*_ga*MTA4NjY2ODg4Ny4xNjU1MzY0NDA4*_ga_58736Z2GNN*MTY3MTcwNTIxNS40LjAuMTY3MTcwNTIxNS42MC4wLjA.&_ga=2.254336008.1439371044.1671705216-1086668887.1655364408
https://www.cancerresearchuk.org/sites/default/files/cancer_inequalities_in_the_uk.pdf?_gl=1*uxkg0w*_ga*MTA4NjY2ODg4Ny4xNjU1MzY0NDA4*_ga_58736Z2GNN*MTY3MTcwNTIxNS40LjAuMTY3MTcwNTIxNS42MC4wLjA.&_ga=2.254336008.1439371044.1671705216-1086668887.1655364408


more likely to be diagnosed through emergency routes like A&E when looking at all 

cancers together. Higher proportions of emergency presentations in more deprived 

groups are particularly clear for bowel, lung, bladder, and pancreatic cancers leading 

to worse survival outcomes. 

More than 30,000 extra cases of cancer in the UK each year are attributable to socio-

economic variation and survival is worse for the most deprived groups. Overweight 

and obesity is the second largest preventable risk factor for cancer after smoking, with 

around 23,000 cases of cancer in the UK each year caused by excess weight.  

Partington is one of the most deprived areas of Trafford. Two LSOAs in Partington 

(E01006108 and E01006105) are recognised as being in the top 10% most deprived 

Lower Super Output areas in the country and three LSOAs (E01006108, E01006107 

and E01006105) in the top 10% of health deprivation and disability. 

LSOA IMD2019 

Decile 

IMD2019 

Rank 

IMD2019 

Score 

Health Deprivation and 

Disability Domain Decile 

E01006104 3 7094 31.974 2 

E01006105 1 2097 50.577 1 

E01006106 3 7197 31.714 3 

E01006107 2 4030 40.802 1 

E01006108 1 490 65.582 1 

 

Smoking 

Smoking is the main risk factor for lung cancer. In the UK over 70% of lung cancer is 

caused by smoking. Only about 1 in 10 people who get lung cancer have never 

smoked. Other risk factors for lung cancer include passive smoking, age, prolonged 

contact with asbestos, air pollution, radon gas and lowered immunity due to 

immunosuppressant drugs. 

Page 16



 

People who are in a lower socio-economic group are more likely to smoke, as are 

those who work in manual jobs and people with mental health issues. In Partington we 

know there is a high level of deprivation. In addition, the percentage of people with 

depression aged 18+ is higher in Trafford West PCN than the England and Trafford 

CCG figures.  

People with mental health problems are almost 2.5 times as likely to smoke as the 

general population. Smoking rates increase with the severity of mental illness. In 

Trafford West among adults with a serious mental illness, 40.5% smoke.

 

Page 17

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/tobacco-control/data#page/3/gid/1938132900/pat/6/par/E12000001/ati/302/are/E06000047/iid/92536/age/168/sex/4/cid/4/tbm/1


There is also a strong relationship between smoking and occupation. In 2009/10, 

smoking prevalence was twice as high among people in routine and manual 

occupations compared to those in managerial and professional occupations. In 

Trafford, 23.4% of  routine and manual workers smoke compared with the England 

and  NW averages,  24.5%: and 25.1% respectively. 

Smoking prevalence amongst adults is higher in the West of Trafford compared to 

Trafford as a whole, 15.44% vs 12.61%. The 2022 smoking prevalence in Partington 

is much higher, ranging from 19.2% and 21.7% . The smoking prevalence national 

target is 5% by 2030. 

 

Alcohol 

Alcohol causes around 11,900 cases of cancer per year in the UK. Breast cancer is 

the most common cancer in the UK and drinking alcohol is one of the biggest risk 

factors for breast cancer. Around 4,400 breast cancer cases each year are caused by 

drinking alcohol. 

Drinking alcohol is a risk factor for several cancers. Any amount of alcohol increases 

the risk of mouth cancer, upper throat and voice box cancer, oesophageal cancer, and 

breast cancer. 

Drinking two or more drinks per day increases the risk of colorectal cancer and drinking 

three or more drinks per day increases the risk of stomach cancer and liver cancer. 

Obesity 

Overweight and obesity is the second biggest cause of cancer in the UK, with more 

than 1 in 20 cancer cases being caused by excess weight. Keeping a healthy weight 

reduces the risk of 13 different types of cancer including breast and bowel cancer, two 

of the most common cancer types. 

Almost a third of UK adults are obese and, while smoking is still the biggest 

preventable cause of cancer and carries a much higher risk of the disease than 

obesity, being overweight or obese is the leading preventable cause of bowel cancer, 

kidney cancer, ovarian cancer, and liver cancer. 

Page 18



In England, adults and children from the most deprived populations are more likely to 

be obese than those from the least deprived populations.  

The graph below shows elevated levels of adult obesity in the two Partington practices 

when compared with the England average (note 2020/21 data may be less reliable 

due to the pandemic). 

 

The prevalence of obesity in Year 6 children is higher in Bucklow-St Martin than in 

Trafford overall, NW and England, as shown in the graph below. 

 

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

V
al

u
es

 %

Period

Obesity: QOF prevalence (18+ yrs)

Practice 1 Practice 2 England

Page 19



 

Other reasons why people in deprived areas have poorer cancer outcomes: 

Recognising symptoms and seeking help 

People from more deprived areas in England are less likely to recognise signs and 

symptoms of cancer than those in the least deprived. For some signs and symptoms 

such as ‘unexplained lump or swelling’ or ‘change in appearance of a mole’, people 

from the most deprived populations were half as likely to recognise these as a potential 

symptom for cancer in a study published in 2015. 

Low cancer symptom awareness is associated with socio-economic disadvantage and 

with poor cancer survival. There is also some evidence2 that fear of cancer, fatalistic 

beliefs about cancer and concerns over wasting the doctor’s time are higher in more 

deprived areas, resulting in delayed help-seeking. 

 
2 Quaife SL, Winstanley K, Robb KA, Simon AE, Ramirez AJ, Forbes LJL, et al. Socioeconomic inequalities in 
attitudes towards cancer: An international cancer benchmarking partnership study. Eur J Cancer Prev. 
2015;24(3):253–60 

Page 20



People in routine and manual occupations are more likely to experience various 

barriers to getting help when they are experiencing symptoms3 

 

 

Screening uptake 

Screening can help prevent cancers developing as well as detect cancers at an early 

stage when treatment is more likely to be successful. There is a large discrepancy, 

however, in screening uptake by socio-economic deprivation. 

Breast and cervical screening coverage is lower in more deprived areas in the UK. 

Women who live in rented accommodation or in households without cars are also less 

likely to attend breast screening; and lower educational level has been associated with 

lower cervical screening coverage in a number of national surveys.  

When the National Bowel cancer Screening programme was introduced there was a 

social gradient in uptake. The introduction of the faecal immunochemical test (FIT) 

might help reduce this gradient. 

The tables below sets out the current screening performance for the national cervical, 

bowel and breast programmes for our two GP practices in Partington along with the 

West PCN and Trafford locality performance. 

 
3 Moffat J, Hinchliffe R, Ironmonger L., et al. Identifying anticipated barriers to help-seeking to promote earlier 
diagnosis of cancer in Great Britain. Public Health 2016; 141, 120-125. 

Page 21



The breast performance is of greatest concern however this has been caused primarily 

with admin and clinical staff issues in the GM Breast Screening Programme.  

Cervical Screening COVERAGE - Females, 25-64, attending cervical screening 

within target period (3.5/5.5-year coverage, %) Below National Target <80%   Above 

National Target >80% 

Cervical 

Coverage 

Jan 20 Sept 22 Variance Screens to 

return to pre-

covid 

Practice 1  69.5% 62.5% -7.1% 63 

Practice 2 76.9% 70.7% -6.2% 84 

Trafford West 80.0% 74.8% -5.2% 652 

Trafford 77.7% 74.8% -2.6% 1,470 

 

Bowel Screening UPTAKE 60-74 - invited for screening in the previous 12 

months who were screened adequately following an initial response within 6 

months of invitation  

Below National Target <60%     Above National Target > 60% 

Bowel Uptake Jan 20 May 22 Variance Screens to 

return to pre-

covid 

Practice 1  59.2% 63.9% +4.7% N/A 

Practice 2 57.5% 62.4% +4.9% N/A 

Trafford West 66.8% 71.6% +5.5% N/A 

Trafford 66.3% 70.9% +4.6% N/A 

 

Breast Screening COVERAGE 50-70 - screened for breast cancer in last 36 

months (3-year coverage, %) 

Below Achievable Standard <80%   Achievable Standard >80% 

Breast 

screening 

coverage 

Jan 20 May 22 Variance Screens to 

return to pre-

covid 

Page 22



Practice 1  57.3% 44.0% -13.4% 54 

Practice 2 66.1% 42.7% -22.4% 156 

Trafford West 76.9% 52.5% -24.4% 1,766 

Trafford 69.4% 60.5% -8.9% 2,664 

 

 

Differences in treatment 

A study in England4 showed that for lung, oesophageal, stomach and pancreatic 

cancers, the most deprived patients received different treatments for late-stage 

disease compared to the least deprived, even after accounting for patient 

characteristics such as age, sex, ethnicity, and comorbidities. More deprived patients 

were around 20% less likely to receive chemotherapy, or chemotherapy and 

radiotherapy combined, compared with the least deprived. We do not yet fully 

understand the reasons for these differences in treatment. 

 

What can we do to help prevent cancer? 

Address wider determinants – deprivation, things affecting mental ill health, access to 

healthy food, measures to increase physical activity, opportunities to control alcohol 

and tobacco, increase transport links to increase opportunities to access range of 

opportunities 

Provide targeted support re: 

- Weight management 

- Stop smoking 

- Mental health services 

- Brief advice for alcohol 

- Healthy food vouchers 

- Increase employment/income 

 
4 Henson KE, Fry A, Lyratzopoulos G, et al. Sociodemographic variation in the use of chemotherapy and 
radiotherapy in patients with stage IV lung, oesophageal, stomach and pancreatic cancer: evidence from 
population-based data in England during 2013–2014. Br J Cancer 118, 1382–1390 (2018) 

Page 23



Work with community to address wider determinants and develop targeted support to 

improve uptake. 

Provide support to address screening 

- Engagement with communities 

- Address concerns – e.g., put residents at ease during smear tests 

- Use co-production to address screening  

- Increase transport links/support to access appointments 

- Take screening mobile units to Partington as less likely to travel 

- Use trusted voices/partners to work with the community 

- Share best practice between Practices for screening 

Need to ensure referrals and early diagnosis happens 

 

The Public health team and the Trafford locality team are currently working on 

the following projects which aims to improve early diagnosis and reduce cancer 

rates. 

 

Breast screening 

We are currently working with the GM Breast Screening Programme to ensure the 

mobile unit is located in Partington for the next screening round in 2024. The previous 

screening round saw the mobile unit located at Trafford general Hospital. 

 

Cervical screening 

We are taking a community engagement approach to increasing cervical screening 

uptake in Partington. The community engagement team are working with members of 

local community to help identify barriers and enablers to booking and attending 

cervical screening appointments – through focus groups and surveys. 

The VCFSE sector will be invited to bid for delivery of the project to help reach further 

members of the community. 

Page 24



Work done to date: 

- Data analysis – quantitative data of screening uptake by Practice 

- Conversations with Practices 

- Survey sent out to residents 

- Letter sent to Practices re how many additional screens needed to reach next 

step of screening target 

- Communications materials developed 

- Focus group held and feedback to be shared with Practices to address issues 

- Work with Cancer Clinical Lead and Head of Commissioning at Trafford ICB 

- Development of specification to target people not booking or attending via 

VCFSE sector organisation 

 

NHS Health Checks 

In addition to cancer screening programmes, Trafford Council provide the NHS Health 

Check programme; which is a national screening programme for those aged 40-74 

with no pre-existing health condition, to identify those at risk of CVD. While cancer 

prevention is not an aim of the NHS Health Check programme, many of the risk factors 

are the same. 

The NHS Health Checks aims to identify and address modifiable risk factors including 

diet, sedentary lifestyle, obesity, tobacco alcohol use. All of these are central to the 

pathogenesis of both diseases and are reflected in common genetic, cellular, and 

signalling mechanisms. Trafford's programmed as recovered well following the impact 

of covid. Currently GPs in Trafford deliver health checks to 5.9% of its eligible 

population above the national average of 3.5%. 

Lung Health Checks 

GM Cancer has commissioned a targeted lung health check programme for all 

residents in Greater Manchester age 55 -74 who have ever smoked. However, this is 

being done on a prioritised PCN basis ranked by deprivation, smoking rates and 

incidence of lung cancer. While Partington is one of the highest for all the indicators it 

forms part of the West PCN and will not receive the lung health check until 24/25. 

Page 25



Given the high level of incidence of lung cancer in Partington we have potentially 

secured £30k slippage funding from GM Cancer for an early diagnosis of lung cancer 

project – subject to sign-off of how the money will be spent and the outcomes/impact. 

The project will involve: 

• A search of GP patient records to identify all patients who are aged 55-74 and have 

even smoked. (Complete – with c 2,00 patients identified) 

• Providing additional Health Care Assistant resource to the GP practices to carry 

out a weekly lung health/respiratory clinic. This will include health checks as well 

as smoking cessation as well as referral for chest x-ray where clinically appropriate. 

(Partington Family are already engaged and a meeting with Partington Central is 

being arranged in January) 

• Commissioning the VCFSE sector to work with this patient cohort to educate on 

lung health, early symptoms and intervention and booking patients into the lung 

health clinic for a check. (The specification is being scoped and will cover working 

with lung health and cervical screening) 

 

 

Page 26



Trafford Health Scrutiny Committee January 2023 - Alcohol   
    

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 
Report to:  Health Scrutiny Committee  
Date:    18th January 2023 
Report for:   Information 
Report of:  Director of Public Health 
 
Report Title 
 

Update on local response to trends in alcohol consumption and harm 
 

 
Summary 
 

This report provides an update to the report to Health Scrutiny in November 2021, addressing 

the question of alcohol as a risk factor, the consequences of the national increase in alcohol 

consumption, and how Trafford services are responding to changes in demand.  

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

Health Scrutiny are asked to note the content of this report and progress to date. 
 

 
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name: Aimee Hodgkinson 
           Public Health Commissioning Support Officer  
           Aimee.hodgkinson@trafford.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Aimee.hodgkinson@trafford.gov.uk


Trafford Health Scrutiny Committee January 2023 - Alcohol   
    

 

Background 

A report on Alcohol was considered by Trafford’s Health Scrutiny Committee in November 2021. This report provides 

an update to that report. 

Alcohol misuse is the biggest risk factor for death, ill-health and disability among 15-49 year olds in the UK, and the fifth 

biggest risk factor across all ages. Alcohol is a causal factor in more than 60 medical conditions, including: mouth, throat, 

stomach, liver and breast cancers, high blood pressure, cirrhosis of the liver, and depression1. As well as having an 

impact on physical health, investing in alcohol treatment and prevention can contribute to making improvements to wider 

societal public health matters such as child poverty and social isolation i.  

An estimated 308,000 children currently live with at least one adult who drinks at a high- risk level in England, and the 

UK has the fourth highest level of prenatal alcohol consumption in the world ii.   

Changes in alcohol consumption during the COVID-19 pandemic are likely to lead to thousands of additional cases of 

disease, premature deaths and hospital admissions. Moderate drinkers consumed less alcohol during the pandemic, 

whereas heavy drinkers consumed more. Alcohol harm, both in terms of health and crime impacts disproportionately on 

the poorest, worsening existing inequalities in society. 

In 2021 there were 9,641 deaths (14.8 per 100,000 people) from alcohol specific causes registered in the UK, a 7.4% 

increase from the previous year. This is the highest number of alcohol deaths on record, as pre-pandemic between 2012 

and 2019 the rates of alcohol-specific deaths in the UK had remained stable, with no statistically significant changes in 

age-standardised rateiii. 

 

Statistics on alcohol harm in Trafford 

Trafford had an alcohol-related mortality rate of 35.9 per 100,000 in 2020 (more recent data have not yet been 

published); this rate is similar to the England rate of 37.8 and increased from a rate of 32 in 2019iv.  

Anecdotal data tell us that alcohol attributable conditions increase as the levels of deprivations increases in Trafford. 

The highest number of specialist alcohol treatment referrals are for areas including Sale, Stretford, and Urmston. 

The spine chart below displays the latest hospital alcohol admissions data for Trafford. These data have been updated 

since the last Health Scrutiny report on alcohol, and we can see an improving trajectory across the majority of indicators, 

with three indicators showing a stable position. The only indicator which is statistically significantly worse than the 

England average is alcohol specific hospital admissions for under 18s, on this measure Trafford is in line with the 

regional average. 

 
 

Page 28



Trafford Health Scrutiny Committee January 2023 - Alcohol   
    

 

 

Looking at the number of hospital admissions which are primarily due to alcohol consumption, this gives us a good 

indication of trends in alcohol-related hospital admissions. For Trafford this has been declining since 2016/17 as shown 

in the graph below. 

 

 

Alcohol Strategy and Services in Trafford 

At the end of 2021, the UK’s national drug strategy ‘From Harm to Hope: a 10-year drugs plan to cut crime and save 

lives’ was published. This was largely based on findings from the Dame Carol Black review at a time where drug-related 

deaths were highest on record. While the review focused on drugs, many of its recommendations apply equally to 

alcohol treatment and support services. However, the last UK Government alcohol strategy is now over 10 years old. Page 29



Trafford Health Scrutiny Committee January 2023 - Alcohol   
    
Given the alarming rise in alcohol related deaths, MP’s, Lords and over 50 organisations of experts in the field wrote to 

the prime minister in November 2022 calling for an independent review on alcohol harm, with the hope that alcohol harm 

will be treated in line with substance misusev.  

Trafford’s Health & Wellbeing Strategy identifies alcohol harm as one of its five priorities for reducing health inequalities 

across the borough. The Health & Wellbeing Board undertook a Deep Dive exercise on the topic of alcohol in November 

2022. A range of professionals came together to discuss alcohol harm in Trafford and collectively identified actions both 

for the Health and Wellbeing Board members and for partner organisations supporting children, adults and families 

affected by alcohol. These actions are currently in the process of being agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board and 

this is estimated to be confirmed at their next meeting on 7th February 2023.  

Achieve Trafford provide bespoke drug and alcohol treatment offers based upon individual needs of the residents of 

Trafford. The service focuses on those who engage in harmful drug and alcohol use and there has been a significant 

increase in referrals for alcohol interventions, particularly in the period of emergence from pandemic associated social 

restrictions and lockdown.  

The service receives a significantly higher number of referrals for alcohol compared to other substances, opiates for 

example, and they have seen this continue through the pandemic.  

Service & Work Programmes 

• Achieve Trafford 
Achieve is the substance misuse partnership across Bury, Bolton, Salford & Trafford that composes different 
organisations to support individuals and families around their own drug and/or alcohol use including: 

  

Greater Manchester Mental Health (GMMH) 
GMMH is the lead provider in the partnership. They are commissioned by Trafford Council 
to support adults over 21 years old wishing to make changes to their alcohol use. An 
assessment of each adult referred into service is undertaken. Individuals accepted into 
structured treatment will be allocated to a case manager who will co-ordinate their journey 
through the service. The case managers will work with the service users to develop a 
personalised care plan including pharmacological and psychosocial interventions.  

 Early Break Young People & Family Service 
Early Break is sub-contracted by GMMH to deliver the young people and family aspect of 
the partnership. They support under 21year olds wishing to make changes to their alcohol 
use. They also offer their Holding Families programme which aims to give the whole family 
the opportunity to talk about any problems caused by alcohol and to allow the children’s 
voices to be heard by the family. They also deliver Holding Families Plus to families in the 
criminal justice system affected by alcohol. Ultimately, the programmes aim to empower 
families to make positive decisions on the changes they would like to make to help improve 
family life. 

 
 

The Big Life Group 
The Big Life Group is sub-contracted by GMMH to offer assertive outreach to people who 
are facing problems with alcohol. They support those who are experiencing barriers to 
accessing treatment along with those who may be at risk, or who have disengaged from 
structured treatment by going out to service user’s home, supporting them to appointments 
and so on. They will then support and motivate this group to actively engage in/ re-engage 
with the structured treatment element at Achieve. 

 
 
 

Intuitive Thinking Skills 
Intuitive Thinking Skills, also sub-contracted by GMMH, offer their accredited abstinence 
educational programme called Intuitive Recovery. This programme is peer-led and teaches 
the basic science of addiction and understanding addictive desire. It provides people with 
the skills, knowledge, and tools to recognise the consequences of their alcohol behaviour, 
therefore encouraging full responsibility for their own choices whilst also removing the fear 
of change. This helps people in the development of a personalised and meaning treatment 
plan. 

 

 

Great Places Housing Group  
Great Places Housing Group are sub-contracted by GMMH to offer housing support to those 
misusing alcohol. They can provide advice and guidance to help individuals who are at risk 
of losing their home, who need help to settle into a new home or to help find a new home.  

 

Those On The Margins of Society (THOMAS) 
THOMAS is sub-contracted by GMMH to offer separate in-community residential alcohol 
rehabilitation support for both men and women.  THOMAS provides a community in which 
residents play an essential, leading part by actively contributing to the running of the 
house, including cleaning and cooking, as part of the therapeutic programme. Page 30

http://www.gmmh.nhs.uk/achieve
http://www.earlybreak.co.uk/
http://www.thebiglifegroup.com/service/achieve/
http://www.intuitivethinkingskills.co.uk/
http://www.greatplaces.org.uk/
http://www.thomasonline.org.uk/


Trafford Health Scrutiny Committee January 2023 - Alcohol   
    

 Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust 
Salford Royal Foundation Trust (SRFT) has an existing Alcohol Care Team in addition to a 
High Impact User service (Alcohol Assertive Outreach Team) to support people who present 
at Salford Royal with alcohol related need. 

 Voluntary Community Action Trafford 

The Achieve Recovery Asset fund is a grant scheme of up to £5,000 to provide support 
services for those recovering from alcohol addiction. Applications can be made for example 
to fund regular alcohol-free social activities, fostering, education, training and employment 
opportunities, social enterprise opportunities to enhance personal growth and development 
of community members and so on. 

 
Trafford Achieve, has a model which works with those drinking at all levels.  The below covers both drug and alcohol 
misuse (substance misuse model) ways of working: 

 
 
On coming into treatment, the client is screened, and individual needs identified.  The links to other parts of the system 
and recognises that a person needs to be treated in a holistic way, so also includes Housing, Education, Criminal Justice, 
and Family domains. There is an opportunity to join local mutual aid groups (such as Alcoholics Anonymous or SMART 
recovery), to sustain recovery within the community.  
 

• Detox Services 

 

 

Chapman Barker Unit (GMMH)  
Chapman Barker Unit, managed by GMMH, supports adults with an alcohol dependence who 
require a medically managed admission to a 36-inpatient unit. Medical staff are on site at all 
times. The usual length of stay varies between 7 to 21 days, depending on individual need.  
Trafford Council commission several bed nights a year for the service.  

 

Smithfield Unit (Turning Point) 
The Smithfield Unit, managed by Turning Point, supports adults with an alcohol dependence 
who require a medically supported inpatient detox. Medical staff are not on site at all times, 
but available if required. The usual length of stay varies between 7 to 21 days, depending on 
individual need. Trafford Council commission several bed nights a year for the service.  

 

• Primary Care 

 

 

Primary Care 
Our GPs ensure that screening, brief and extended brief interventions are available for people 
at risk of an alcohol-related problem (hazardous drinkers) and those whose health is being 
damaged by alcohol (harmful drinkers) in line with NICE guidance related to alcohol-use 
disorders. As part of their intervention, they will also signpost to specialist treatment services. 
 

      

 Page 31

https://www.nhs.uk/Services/hospitals/Overview/DefaultView.aspx?id=2132
https://achievebst.salfordcvs.co.uk/
https://www.gmmh.nhs.uk/chapman-barker-unit
https://www.nhs.uk/services/service-directory/turning-point-smithfield-detox-unit/N10863240


Trafford Health Scrutiny Committee January 2023 - Alcohol   
    

Trafford Performance Data 

Performance of the Achieve substance misuse service is good and consistently above the national average. GMMH 

have a CQC rating of ‘outstanding’ for its substance misuse service.  Trafford continues to be a high performing drug 

and alcohol system within GM, as evidenced by the data metrics available in the National Drug Treatment Monitoring 

System (NDTMS).   

The data below includes information shared from the Achieve service in relation to their service users affected by 

alcohol. This information was collated in October 2022 as part of the Health and Wellbeing Board deep dive.  

Adults 
The Trafford Achieve caseload per substance as of 20th October 2022:  
 

Row Labels Count of Sub Cat 

Opiate 302 

Alcohol 181 

Alcohol & Non-Opiate 54 

Non-Opiate 11 

Grand Total 548 

 
The treatment stats broken down by substance category from January to October 2022: 

Count of 2022 Episode starts per month 
   

 
 

Count of Sub 

Cat 

Column 

Labels 
            

Row Labels 
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct 

Grand 

Total 
  

Alcohol 17 24 20 14 27 15 34 26 23 18 218   

Opiates 13 10 5 9 8 4 9 11 10 4 83   

Alc & Non 

Opiate 
7 9 8 7 8 9 3 5 7 3 66   

Non Opiate  - 2 2 6 3  - 2 1 3 2 21   

Grand Total 37 45 35 36 46 28 48 43 43 27 388   

  
This evidences that the highest number of treatment starts are in the alcohol category, with the highest number of starts 
in July and the lowest in April.  
 
There are a higher number of service users accessing support for alcohol from the Sale, Stretford & Urmston areas of 
Trafford. This mirrors what the Big Life Assertive Outreach Team anecdotally tell us that Sale, Stretford and Urmston 
appear to be their most targeted areas with a few clients across Altrincham, but rarely Hale, Hale Barns or Bowdon for 
both drugs and/or alcohol. Alcohol remains their primary substance of support need across Trafford.  
 
When we look at the commissioned service from Primary Care, data from 2021/22 tells us they completed the following 
number of interventions were complete: 
Brief interventions: 683 
Extended interventions: 70 
Onward referrals: 21. 

 
 
 
 Page 32



Trafford Health Scrutiny Committee January 2023 - Alcohol   
    

Young People (Under 21 years) 
This information provides an overview of the work carried out by Early Break in relation to alcohol use. The service tells 
us the pandemic has impacted on pathways into service and 2022 has been a process of strengthening partnership 
working and referral pathways in Trafford. 
 
Here we have a breakdown of the number of referrals into service for all substances and where alcohol is a feature up 
to October 2022: 
Referrals in total (all substances) 
2021: 192 
2022: 177  
 
Alcohol as either primary or secondary/tertiary substance 
2021: 83 YP – 43% of referrals 
2022: 69 YP - 39% of referrals  
 
Here we have a breakdown of alcohol use by age: 
 
Ages: 

Ages (Alcohol users) 2021 2022 

Up to 13 5 (6%) 5 (7%) 

14 - 16 41 (49%) 30 (43%) 

17-19 28 (34%) 25 (36%) 

20+ 9 (11%) 9 (13%) 

 
As you can see for both years, the highest age group for alcohol support was 14-16 years followed by 17-19 years.  
 
Referral Sources for those using alcohol: All Hospital referrals involved Alcohol use. 

Referral Sources (Alcohol users) 2021 
 

2022 
 

Hospital 24 29% 18 26% 

C&F Services 17 20% 14 20% 

Universal Education 11 13% 9 13% 

MH Services 8 10% 9 13% 

YP Treatment Provider 6 8% 7 11% 

GP 4 5% 4 6% 

YOT 5 6% 2 3% 

Self 4 5% 1 1% 

Relative 2 2% 1 1% 

Adult Treatment provider 0 0% 2 3% 

Targeted Youth Support 2 2% 2 3% 

 
This table also tells us that most of the referrals to Early Break to support young people with their alcohol use come 
from the hospital.  
 
It is also worth noting that Early Break chair the Greater Manchester Substance Misuse Operational Group (SMOG) 
meeting to discuss pathways, emerging trends or new themes. The meeting is represented by colleagues from young 
people’s drug and alcohol treatment services across Greater Manchester and Health Professionals from emergency 
departments and School Nurses. The SMOG is reports back to the North West Children, Young People and Families 
Substance Misuse Partnership Group. This is a strategic group that reports to the Greater Manchester Strategic Lead 
for Drugs and Alcohol. 

 

 

Conclusion 

The COVID-19 pandemic has caused an unprecedented acceleration in alcohol-related deaths, at a time where there 

is currently no national strategy to tackling this public health issue. At a Greater Manchester Level, the Greater 

Manchester Combatting Drugs Partnership is currently in the process of finalising their delivery plan for 2023-2024. 

Though this focuses primarily on drugs, actions will also help address alcohol harm.  

Page 33



Trafford Health Scrutiny Committee January 2023 - Alcohol   
    
Locally, work is being done with the Health & Wellbeing Board to address alcohol harm in Trafford. The Public Health 

Team are currently in the process of setting up a substance misuse partnership, as a subgroup of Safer Trafford 

Partnership, where emerging themes and pathways can be discussed with a range of organisations working with 

children, adults and families affected by alcohol in Trafford. We are also in the process of commissioning an early 

intervention and prevention outreach service for under 18s in the hope this will reduce the harm affected by alcohol with 

this group and reduce the likelihood of them presenting at A&E in crisis.   

 
i Local Alcohol Profiles for England - OHID (phe.org.uk) 
ii ‘It’s everywhere’ – alcohol’s public face and private harm: The report of the Commission on Alcohol Harm - Alcohol 
Health Alliance (ahauk.org) 
iii Alcohol-specific deaths in the UK - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk) 
iv Public health profiles - OHID (phe.org.uk) 
v MPs, Lords and over 50 organisations and experts write to the Prime Minister calling for an independent review on 
alcohol harm - Alcohol Health Alliance (ahauk.org) 

Page 34

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/local-alcohol-profiles
https://ahauk.org/resource/commission-on-alcohol-harm-report/
https://ahauk.org/resource/commission-on-alcohol-harm-report/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/alcoholspecificdeathsintheuk/2021registrations
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/alcohol
https://ahauk.org/news/independent-review-on-alcohol/
https://ahauk.org/news/independent-review-on-alcohol/


  
 

1 
 

Report to:  Health Scrutiny Committee  

Date:    18th January 2022 

Report for:              Information/Discussion  

Report of:  Cathy O’Driscoll Associate Director of Transformation and 
Delivery NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care and 
Eleanor Roaf, Director of Public Health, Trafford Council 

 Report Title 

  

Trafford Locality Urgent Care Review 

 Summary 

  

This report updates Health Scrutiny Committee on progress made on the Trafford 
Locality Urgent Care Review.  

  

This review has been undertaken as part of the Trafford locality plan into 
consideration of services to Trafford patients. It should also be noted that with the 
recent development of the NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care Partnership the 
newly formed organisation now takes statutory responsibility for developments 
around healthcare across the 10 localities within Greater Manchester including 
within the Trafford locality.   

 

This report is the output of the first stage of the review process and outlines a needs 
assessment of the population of Trafford and the outputs of the critical appraisal of 
the current urgent care services being offered in Trafford. In addition to this the 
iterative report will be developed further with supplementary information following the 
public survey that is planned to commence during January 2023 to compliment the 
needs assessment and critical appraisal elements of this review.   

 

 Recommendation(s) 

  

1) Health Scrutiny are asked to note the content of this report and progress to date  

  

Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 

Name: James Gray, Head of Unscheduled Care (Trafford), NHS Greater Manchester 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



  
 

2 
 

Contents 

1.0 Introduction 

2.0 Background 

3.0 Outcome Priorities, Objectives and scope of services 

4.0 Key Messages 

 

Main Report 

5.0 Trafford & Current Urgent Care services – Mapping of services 

6.0 Changes in Activity over time 

7.0 Mapping of Services 

8.0 Primary and Secondary Care Services  

9.0 Use of Urgent Care Services 

10.0 When do people attend Urgent Care Services 

11.0 Insight  

12.0 Trafford Profile 

13.0 Summary 

14.0 Key Findings 

15.0 Recommendations 

16.0 Glossary 

17.0 Appendices 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



  
 

3 
 

1.0 Introduction  
 
1.1 Urgent care is the diagnosis and treatment of medical conditions which are serious or acute 

but pose no immediate threat to life or limb or health but which requires medical attention 
within 24 hours.  
 

1.2 A simple to navigate, joined up Urgent Care offer which meets the needs of all of the  
 population has been a long-standing ambition in our Locality Plan. Therefore the full scope 
 of this review will be to assess whether this is in place for Trafford and ultimately will be  
 that integrated Urgent Care access is available to all residents of the borough based on   
 the needs of the population and health inequalities. 
 
1.3 This review also considers whether the urgent care services are in line with national 

guidance and can be delivered in a sustainable manner within the staffing and financial 
resources available. 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 The following document describes the elements that have been considered in assessing the 
 urgent care needs of the people of Trafford.  Urgent care is defined as the need for health 
 care within 24 hours, but does not include emergency care, which is treatment for life or 
 limb-threatening conditions.  It includes diagnosis and treatment required to meet urgent 
 health care needs – this could be for injuries such as fractures and sprains, or for people  
 presenting with illnesses or conditions such as fevers, urinary tract infections, or breathing 
 difficulties. 
 
2.2 Urgent care is delivered in a number of settings, including by GPs and pharmacists, as well as 
 in hospital A&E departments and bespoke urgent care services.  Some of these services  
 operate within working hours only, others have extended hours or are available 24/7.   
 Urgent  care advice can also be sought online and by phone, either by calling NHS 111, or 
 dialling  999. 
 
2.3 The primary purpose of this review is to ensure that in Trafford we have a simple to  
 navigate, joined up Urgent Care offer which meets the needs of all of the population.  
 Taking into account the current and future projected needs in correlation to the services on 
 offer. The scope of this review will be to consider individual urgent care services rather than 
 sites or hospitals specifically. 
 
**Note the contents of this report are in relation to the Trafford locality and Trafford patients only. 
 
3.0  Outcome Priorities and Objectives 
 

1. Services provide consistently high quality and safe care 
2. The system is simple and supports good, informed choices by patients, their carers and 
clinicians 
3. The system provides easy access to the right care delivered by those with the appropriate 
skills 
4. Services are efficient and effective in the delivery of care for patients. 
5. The service offer reduces inequalities and meets the needs of all 

Page 37



  
 

4 
 

6. The service offers ensure equity of spend 
 
3.1 Need for urgent care varies by a number of factors such as age, deprivation, and prevalence 

of underlying conditions.  This document outlines the factors that have been considered in 
the needs assessment and comments on how well these needs are currently met in Trafford. 

 
3.2 To understand the significance of urgent care, it is worth noting the following, bearing in 
 mind that there are 237,600 people living in Trafford.   

 
• On average there are over 295,000 Urgent Care attendances/calls per year for Trafford 

residents 
• Ambulance Service dealt with 41,000 patients either through see and treat or see and 

convey 
• 63,000 ED attendances across 5 sites 
• 19,000 Primary Care Out of Hours calls or visits 
 5,500 Same Day Emergency Care appointments at Wythenshawe  
• 44,000 patients were supported through NHS 111 either online or via the telephone 
• 30,000 patients were supported through children's community nursing teams 
• 67,000 patients seen across Urgent Treatment Centres 
• 12,000 patients seen at the Minor Injuries Unit (19/20) 
 1,400 Mental Health Crisis Responses 
 3,000 referrals to our GM Clinical Assessment Service 
 3,000 referrals from NWAS to our Alternative to Transfer Service 
 3,000 Urgent Eye Care Service Appointments 
 1,000 Crisis Café attendances 
 In addition to this were also 414,640 same day primary care appointments during 21/22 and 

a total of 881,000 primary care appointments across the year 
 

4.0 Key Messages of the Needs Assessment and Critical Appraisal 
 

 Overall, attendances for urgent care  dropped in Trafford between 2019/20 and 2021/22 
(mainly due to the impact of the Covid pandemic, but we are starting to see levels return to 
pre-pandemic activity), 

 In general, in the UK, more deprived areas have higher rates of urgent care service usage, 
and this is the pattern seen in Trafford 

 Rates of attendance at urgent care services are highest in older people, and this increase 
starts at a younger age in the North than the South of the borough. 

 Most people use urgent care between 8am – 8pm, with highest attendances on Mondays 
and lowest on Saturdays, and to a lesser extent, Sundays.   

 Wythenshawe is the most commonly used site, but also tends to be used more by our less 
deprived population. 

 Rates of attendance in children are higher in North and West Trafford, and the attendances 
in both children and older people were lower in the South. This is likely to be explained by 
the lower rate of deprivation in the South. 

 Most of Trafford’s population has good access to urgent care sites, either through good 
public transport links or because of high rates of car ownership.   

 Trafford has the second-best rate of access to hospitals in GM based on public transport or 
walking with 88.4% of the population within 30 minutes by public transport of a hospital 
site.  

Page 38



  
 

5 
 

 People tend to go to the urgent care site that is closest to them, but the proportion of 
people who live within 2 miles of the site they attended varies greatly, as some sites cater 
for a much wider geographic area.  

 GP activity has increased sharply since the pandemic, with a substantial increase in the 
number of people having same day appointments.  

 Use of the NHS 111 service fluctuates considerably over time, but all four neighbourhoods 
show the same pattern of fluctuation, although usage is much higher in North and West 
Trafford than in Central or South.   

 We would expect to see higher rates of attendance among people living in more deprived 
areas, and those with older people, and higher numbers of attendances from people in more 
densely populated areas.   

 There are three services within Trafford that do not currently meet national guidelines or 
requirements 

 
5.0 Trafford locality & Current Services 

Trafford consists of 4 neighbourhoods and 21 wards.  

Map 1: showing the four Trafford Neighbourhoods 

 

 

5.1 Map 2 below shows the population distribution in Trafford, the higher the population  
 density the darker the colouring. The most densely populated areas are in the South  

Page 39



  
 

6 
 

 neighbourhood in Broadheath (6% of the Trafford population) and Altrincham (5.6%) and in 
 the North neighbourhood in Longford (5.4%) and Clifford (5.4%).  

Map 2: Showing the population density by Trafford  

 

 

5.2 As part of the critical appraisal element of the review the information below describes those 
services within scope of the review, including the services, location and provider. The 
appraisal considers those services which are required within a locality and that meet the 
required expectations and standards for those services. The appraisal also outlines where 
there are services that may not meet current guidelines for service delivery, or may be 
additional provision to support the locality. 

 16 types of service are in scope of the review that provide urgent care provision 
across Trafford 

 Most of the services will have a physical presence or site-based provision 
 Some services may operate from multiple sites 
 Some services may operate digitally or have no physical presence in the borough or 

operate through a visiting model 
 Each of the services were mapped against national guidance/requirements or 

standards to understand the requirements for those services  
 The NHS Long Term Plan outlines and articulates the expectations for many of the 

services identified within this review as the most recent NHS guidelines and 
standards for delivery.  

Page 40



  
 

7 
 

 

5.3 Table 1 below outlines the different services available within Trafford or that are regularly 
 accessed by Trafford patients. The table outlines the service, provider, hours of delivery, 
 and average daily levels of activity and whether the service is in line with national guidelines,
 expectations and standards.  

Urgent Care Services within Trafford/accessible to Trafford patients 

Table 1: Outlining the key urgent care services accessible within or to Trafford patients 

 Service   Location  Provider  Hours of 
Delivery  

Daily 
Average  

National 
Requirement/Guida

nce compliant  

1 Ambulance  Borough Wide  NWAS  24/7  112  Y  

2 

  

  

  

Emergency 
Departments  

  

  

  

  

Wythenshawe  MFT  24/7  113  Y  

MRI  MFT  24/7  26  Y  

Salford  SRFT  24/7  20  Y  

NMGH  MFT  24/7  <1  Y  

RMCH  MFT  24/7  10  Y  

3 

  

  

  

Urgent 
Treatment 
Centre  

  

  

  

  

MRI  MFT  08:00-22:00  5  Y  

Wythenshawe
,   

MFT/Master
call  

08:00-22:00  4  Y  

Trafford,   Mastercall 
TPAS/UTC  

08:00-20:00  130  N (TPAS element 
additional 
provision)  

Trafford,   MFT UTC  08:00-20:00  44  Y  

NMGH  MFT  08:00-22:00  0  Y  

4 Minor Injuries 
Unit  

Altrincham 
Hospital  

MFT  08:00-20:00 
M-F and 

10:00-18:00 
S/S  

33  N (Not compliant 
with UEC/UTC 

guidance)  

5 Same Day 
Emergency 
Care (SDEC)  

  

Wythenshawe  MFT  08:00-22:00  15  Y  

MRI  MFT  08:00-22:00  TBC  Y  

6 Crisis 
Response  

Borough Wide  TLCO  08:00-22:00  TBC  Y  

Page 41



  
 

8 
 

7 GP Enhanced 
Access  

Borough Wide  Primary Care 
Networks  

18:30-20:00 
M-F  

08:00-18:30 
S/S  

TBC  Y  

8 Same Day 
Primary Care 
Access  

Borough Wide  Core 
GP/Pharmac
y/Dentistry  

08:00-18:30  1,136 Core 
GP (same 

day)  

Y  

9 Children’s 
Community 
Nursing  

Borough Wide  MFT  08:30-22:30  82  Y  

10 Crisis Café  Borough Wide  Blusci  19:00-02:00 
M-F & 17:00-

02:00 S/S  

2  Y  

11 NHS 111 
(Telephone/O
nline)  

Borough Wide  North West 
Ambulance 
Service  

24/7  121  Y  

12 Greater 
Manchester 
Clinical 
Assessment 
Service  

Borough Wide  OOHA  24/7  9  Y  

13 Alternative to 
Transfer 
(ATT)/+  

Borough Wide  Mastercall 
Healthcare  

24/7  8  N (additional 
resource to 

support 
ambulance 
deflection) 

14 Primary Care 
Out of Hours  

Borough Wide  Mastercall 
Healthcare  

18:30-08:00 
M-F & 18:30 

F-08:00 M  

53  Y  

15 Mental Health 
Crisis 
Response  

Borough Wide  GMMH  24/7  4   Y  

16 CUES - Urgent 
Eyecare 
Service  

Borough Wide  Various   Dependent 
on service  

9  Y 

 

5.4 Table 1 identifies three services within Trafford that do not currently meet national  
 guidelines or requirements and the rationale for this is outlined further on in this  
 document. Map 3 details the physical presence for services located in and  
 around the Trafford locality that provide some element of urgent care provision. This 
 includes services within Manchester and Salford that are frequently accessed by Trafford 
 patients.   

 

Page 42



  
 

9 
 

5.5 Map 3 details the locations of GP Practices (blue circles), Dental Practices (orange 
triangles), Pharmacies (green crosses), Urgent Eye Care Services (CUES) (blue asterisk) 
delivered via Optometrists, as well as the 5 main sites (large red circles) including: - 

- Trafford General Hospital 

- Oxford Road campus 

- Altrincham General Hospital 

- Wythenshawe Hospital 

- Salford Royal Foundation Trust 

 

Map 3: Outlining the current physical sites of urgent care services provided across Trafford 

Source: Secondary uses service 

 

 

 

5.6 Diagram 1 outlines the virtual and visiting services that are available within the Trafford 
locality for patients. These services often do not have a physical site for patients to attend 
but often provide digital, telephone or community/domiciliary services for patients. Some of 
these services may be provided or based from some of the physical sites outlined in the 
previous map.  

 

 

Page 43



  
 

10 
 

 

Diagram 1: outlining the current virtual and visiting services available to Trafford patients 

 

 

5.7 Within the scope of this exercise are all urgent or same day health care services that are  
 provided within Trafford or accessed by Trafford residents  

 These services were considered based on National Guidance and requirements 
outlined within various documents such as the NHS Long-Term Plan or 5 year 
Forward View.  

 The services were considered against the national guidance and it has been 
identified where they may not meet the required standards, expectations or 
deliverables 

 Consideration has also been given to the levels of activity and costs however, cost of 
the services are not currently in scope of this document and will be excluded from 
consideration at present 

 The services were considered in terms of activity levels, trends and averages and 
where there have been significant shifts in activity this has also been outlined. 

 
 
6.0 Changes in Activity over time 
 
6.1 The 5 main Urgent and Emergency Care sites available for Trafford residents are detailed in 
 the Table 2. Note TGH is one service provided through provider collaboration and the 
 figures for 2021/22 for AMIU are due to the service being reopened for 1 month.   
 

 

 

 

 

Page 44



  
 

11 
 

 

Table 2: outlining the levels of activity/attends for the main acute urgent care services 

Attends at ED/UCC/MIU by Trafford patients 

      

Provider site 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 
(Part Year) 

Wythenshawe  33,269  33,154  30,451  43,143  10,882  

Trafford General UCC  20,697  21,181   13,054  16,250  4,751  

Trafford General Mastercall 37,205 35,391 14,302 28,700 9,987 

Oxford road  
(Including RMCH) 

 18,020 17,139    13,803  15,826  3,962  

Salford Royal   6,369  6,564    5,790   7,381  1,767  

Altrincham MIU   12,949  12,269 2    659   1  

NMGH       316  272  202    376   91  
      

 

Graph 1: outlining the number of attends at the main ED and UTC Sites across Manchester and Trafford since 2018/19 

 

• The activity outlined on graph 1 covers the last 5 years of activity across the main urgent care 
services accessed by Trafford patients (a breakdown by service for the Oxford Road site is 
presented in graph 2 below). 

• Consideration needs to be given to the impact of Covid on activity/trends particularly during 
2020/21 where a significant drop in activity can be seen.  

 It can also be noted that in the majority of sites the levels of activity are below those of pre-
pandemic with the exception of Wythenshawe. However, it is also evident from the shift in 

Page 45



  
 

12 
 

correlating activity that the same proportion of Trafford patients that previously attended 
AMIU are now attending Wythenshawe.  

Graph 2: outlining the number of attends at the Oxford Road UTC Sites since 2018/19 

 

• 2021/22 saw levels of activity return to “normal”. 

• The increase in activity at Wythenshawe in 2021/22 can be attributed to the proportional shift 
of patients from AMIU. 

• As can be seen from map 3, provision of services outline in addition to the borough wide virtual 
and visiting services, there is a significant level of service provision available to patients within 
the borough. 

• Of the 16 different service types considered within this review, there are 3 services that either 
do not meet current guidelines or are services provided above those prescribed by National 
guidance. These services are outlined in Table 3 along with a rationale as to why they do not 
meet national requirements. 

Table 3 showing service and Rationale for being outside of national requirements 
Service Rationale 

Altrincham Minor 
Injuries Unit 
(AMIU) 
 

National guidance stipulates that Minor Injuries Units should no longer be provided 
within the NHS as outlined by the NHS Long Term Plan and guidance for Urgent 
Treatment Centres. UTC guidelines outline that services previously identified as Minor 
Injuries Units should either be changed to Urgent Treatment Centres, primary care hubs 
or the ongoing delivery of service reconsidered. 

Mastercall TPAS Whilst it is a requirement for localities to have a clinical assessment service, Trafford 
commissions a clinical assessment service as part of a GM wide commissioned service 
and has an additional service called the Trafford Patient Assessment Service to support 
those patients who would have been referred to the UTC at TGH.  

Mastercall ATT This service has been in place for a number of years and provides alternatives to 
conveyance for ambulance crews to refer to. This supports the wider urgent care system 
in reducing the volume of conveyances to ED and whilst not a requirement contributes 
significantly to the reduction of ED activity.  

Page 46



  
 

13 
 

 
6.2 The following pages outline the levels of activity across primary care within Trafford. The 

information contained with these pages has been collated through a new reporting system 
called GPAD. There are still a number of data quality issues that are being reviewed within 
the data provided through GPAD but the information provided is indicative of levels of 
activity across the borough for primary care.  

 
6.3 Graph 3 outlines the percentage of appointments by different professionals within primary 

care in Trafford  compared to nationally and as can be seen Trafford has 5.5% more 
appointments available with GPs than national comparators.  

 
Graph 3 showing percentage of appointments for healthcare professionals nationally and locally 

 

6.4 Graph 4 outlines the levels of activity at that have been undertaken across primary care 
during 2021/22 within Trafford broken down by duration from booking of appointment to 
the appointment taking place. This is also provided by day of the week. Graph 5 also outlines 
that the proportion of appointments for same day is higher within Trafford than national 
comparators.  

Graph 4 showing difference between booking and appointment by weekday across primary care in Trafford 2021-22 

 

Page 47



  
 

14 
 

Graph 5 showing the difference between booking and appointment time 2021-22 Trafford compared to Nationally 

 

 

7.0 Mapping of services  

7.1 The map below shows Trafford services and the potential level of need. In the top left we 
have a map of deprivation, the darker the colour the higher the deprivation, and the bottom 
right population distribution, the darker the colour the higher the population density. All 
other things being equal, we would expect to see higher rates of attendance among people 
living in more deprived areas, and higher numbers of attendances from people in more 
densely populated areas.  

 
7.2 Trafford undertook a Pharmacy Needs Assessment in July 2022 

(link:https://www.trafford.gov.uk/residents/adults-and-older-people/health-and-
wellbeing/docs/Trafford-Pharmaceutical-Needs-Assessment.pdf). This identified that the 
people of Trafford had good access to pharmacies in and out of hours with the exception of 
Partington (Bucklow-St Martins) where there was an identified gap on Saturday afternoons 
and Sundays however, work is underway to rectify this. 

 
 
Map 3a: Outlining the current physical sites of urgent care services provided across Trafford Source: Secondary uses service 

 

Page 48



  
 

15 
 

7.3 For other services it is noted from the map that they are more sparse in the less  
 deprived wards of Bowdon, Ashton upon Mersey and Priory; and in the more  
 deprived Bucklow-St Martins, an area at-risk of transport-related social exclusion 
 (this is explored further below), and Gorse Hill. However, all of these areas, with the 
 exception of Buckslow-St Martins, have good access to transport.  
 
7.4 While access to GPs and pharmacies is generally good across Trafford, a specific  
 question was raised on the access that people have to hospital and urgent care  
 sites.  Maps 4 and 5 show the access to public transport, and also explore car  
 ownership.  
 
7.5 Looking first at public transport, Maps 4 and 5 below show journey times to each hospital. 

Red indicates areas that are 15 minutes or less from a hospital, orange 15-30 minutes, 
yellow 30-60 minutes and blue over an hour away.   The inset map in the top left corner 
shows population density by ward in order to give an impression of the number of people 
affected.   

 
7.6 Map 4 shows journey times by public transport in 2019/20, when Altrincham Minor Injuries 

Unit was open. At that point, nearly 90% of our residents could access a hospital site by 
public transport within 30 minutes). Map 5 shows the situation in 2021/22, when the AMIU 
service was suspended1. The table on the right-hand side of each map gives comparative 
data for Greater Manchester. It can be seen that in 2019/20 Trafford was 2nd of the 10 
Greater Manchester boroughs for the proportion of its population within 30 minutes of a 
hospital/urgent care site by public transport.   

 
7.7 With the suspension of the AMIU service in 2021/22, Trafford’s relative position fell to 6th in 

GM, with just under half its population able to reach a site by public transport within 30 
minutes.  However, it must be noted that the Altrincham site only offered a minor injuries 
service, so those requiring urgent care for minor illnesses had to go elsewhere, so the 
change is not as marked as initial impressions from the maps.    

 

Map 4: Public Transport Journey Times to each Hospital (excluding Altrincham Hospital) – 2020-2021 services 

Source: Transport for Greater Manchester 

 

                                                           
1 Note this is for hospital sites in their entirety not just urgent care services 

Page 49



  
 

16 
 

 

Map 5: Public Transport Journey Times to each Hospital (including Altrincham Hospital) – 2022 services 

Source: Transport for Greater Manchester 

 

7.8 While accessibility by public transport is very important, many people access hospital 
services by car. Trafford has a relatively high rates of car ownership, especially in the south 
of the borough.  The map below depicts households with no car, with the darker the colour 
the higher percentage of households with no car.  

Map 6: outlining Households in Trafford with no car or van access 

Source: Trafford Data Lab 

 

7.9 Transport for the North has developed a tool to evaluate transport-related social 
 exclusion, which is a measure of accessibility to public services combined with  
 vulnerability relating to deprivation and this is shown in map 7 below: 

Page 50



  
 

17 
 

 

 

Map 7: Transport–Related Social Exclusion (TRSE) Risk  

LSOAs are scored on accessibility to public services and vulnerability relating to deprivation. Those living in LSOAs with a 
TRSE Risk Category of 3 or higher are considered at high risk of social exclusion because of transport issues. 

Source: Transport for the North 

 

7.10 Compared to other boroughs in Greater Manchester, Trafford has relatively fewer areas of 
transport-related social exclusion risk. Areas of concern are Bucklow-St Martin (Partington) 
where just over a third (34%) of households are car-less, and parts of West St Mary’s which 
has relatively few cars registered to the area when compared with the rest of Trafford, 
South Sale Moor and South Altrincham.  Broadheath, which as shown on the map above, has 
limited public transport access to local hospitals has a very low car-less population (14.5%) 
and has one of the highest number of cars registered per LSOA. Conversely, Clifford ward 
has low levels of car ownership but good public transport links to hospitals. 

 
7.11 Table 3a outlines the range of costs to access the two closest hospitals from each ward 

within Trafford. The postcodes used for each ward are the closest and furthest away (as the 
crow flies) from each site, the distance travelled, fuel costs, journey time, and taxi fares 
calculated using the route travelled as per the RAC. The costs are for petrol, diesel and by 
taxi.    

 
7.12 Considering Table 3a and the first hospitals only that are closest to each ward, we can see 

from the shaded areas of the table those areas with high costs from either fuel or taxi costs 
are, Sale Moor (to Wythenshawe Hospital), Bowdon (to Altrincham Hospital) and Bucklow St 
Martins (to Trafford General Hospital). This is consistent with the information provided in 
Map 7 in relation to the transport related social exclusions. However it should be noted that 
whilst we are considering urgent care the instances of use are irregular and ad hoc and 
therefore the implications of costs should be considered in this context.  

 
 
 
 

Page 51



  
 

18 
 

Table 3a: Outlining the range of costs to access the two closest hospitals from each ward 

 
 
8.0 Primary and Secondary Care Services 
 
8.1 GP practices in Trafford are distributed between 5 PCNs: Altrincham, North, Sale, South  and 

West Trafford PCNs. A GPs PCN is denoted by the colour of its dot. While the GP  Practices in 
North Central and West are linked relatively clearly to geographically distinct populations, 
people registered in the South and Altrincham PCNs are spread more evenly across South 
Trafford. For this reason, the South (light blue dots) and Altrincham (dark blue dots) PCNs 
GPs are not separated on this map. 

 

Map 8: showing the General Practices by Postcode and PCN 

Source: NHS Digital 

 

Page 52



  
 

19 
 

8.2 Nearly 27% of those aged over 75 years and registered with a Trafford GP are  
 registered with the Central PCN and 24% with the West PCN where most of the Care 
 homes are located. Over a quarter (26%) of those registered with a Trafford PCN  
 aged under 5 years are registered with the Central PCN.  The North PCN has  
 considerably fewer people aged 75 and over registered.   

 

Graph 6: showing Distribution of Trafford PCN Population by Age Group and PCN (as of October 2022) 
Source: GP Disease Registers 

 

8.3 There is ongoing debate about the number of GPs required per 1,000 population, however, 
taking a figure of 1 FTE GP per 1,800 patients as a national benchmark, Trafford has 1,200 
patients per FTE GP. As a comparator the BMA outlined that in October 2022 nationally 
there were 0.44 fully qualified GPs per 1,000 patients 2. It is worth noting that while overall 
Trafford has slightly more GPs than this, we can see considerable variation across the PCNs 
and practices in Trafford. Different practice populations also affect the need for GPs, with 
practices serving more vulnerable patients due to social deprivation and age being more 
likely to require a higher ratio of GPs to patients. In Trafford, the North and West where we 
have higher rates of deprivation do not seem to be under doctored from this data. Difficulty 
in accessing primary care has been given as a reason for people using urgent care services, 
although there are many other reasons for people to choose hospital sites for urgent care. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
2 https://www.bma.org.uk/advice-and-support/nhs-delivery-and-workforce/pressures/pressures-in-general-
practice-data-analysis  

Page 53



  
 

20 
 

Graph 7: showing Trafford GPs per 1,000 Patients by General Practice and PCN (as of October 2022). 

Shows ratio required for 1 FTE GP per 1,800 patients (red line) and Trafford average (black dashed line) *includes FTE 
estimates 

Source: NHS Digital 

 

8.4 In Trafford, primary care appointments are slightly more likely to be with a GP rather than 
another healthcare professional as outlined in Graph 8, compared to the national picture 
which may be reflective of the slightly higher ratio of GPs in Trafford detailed in graph 7.   

Graph 8 showing the percentage of appointments by different professionals within primary care in Trafford compared to 
nationally  

 

Graph 9 showing the number of and time between booking and appointment including same day appointments 

 

Page 54



  
 

21 
 

8.5 Graph 9 above outlines the increasing levels of activity across primary care which can be 
seen to be on an increasing trend with the levels of same day appointments increasing the 
most, reaching over 40,000 in the month of October 2022 alone. Whilst this is the highest 
level of same day appointments since May 2020 the total overall levels of activity have also 
passed their highest point with over 100,000 combined appointments in total for General 
Practice in October 2022 as detailed in Graph 10. 

 
Graph 10 showing the number of Appointments in General Practice – Trafford 

 

8.6 There are a number of methods of delivery of appointments within primary care including 
 face to face, home visits, telephone, video conferencing and digitally.  
 
Graph 11 showing the number of Appointments 21/22 across primary care and appointment mode 

 
 

 

 

Page 55



  
 

22 
 

Graph 12 showing the appointment Mode within Trafford compared to nationally 

 

 
9.0  Use of Urgent Care Services 
 
9.1 Graph 13 below shows the attendances by Trafford residents at the main urgent care sites for 

Trafford patients over the last 5 years.  Covid reduced activity considerably in 2020/21 but this 
has now returned to ‘normal’ levels during 2021/22. The increase in activity at Wythenshawe 
in 21/22 can be attributed to the proportional shift of patients that would have been seen 
within the AMIU previously. 

 
Graph 13 showing attends at ED/UTC/MIU  

 

9.2 Graph 14 below shows usage of Urgent Care services by neighbourhood of residence  
 during 2019-20. For all neighbourhoods, residents, as would be expected, usually attended 
 the hospital nearest to them (as seen on the map in the top right), with those in the South 
 and Central neighbourhoods (in the bar chart to the left) making up the largest proportion of 
 those attending Altrincham. Nearly 13% of patients attended Altrincham MIU overall (in the 
 bar chart to the right).  

 

Page 56



  
 

23 
 

Graph 14: showing the attends at Urgent Care Services by neighbourhood 

Percentage of each neighbourhood and overall attending each site during 2019-20 

Source: Secondary Uses Service 

 
9.3 Since Altrincham Minor Injuries Unit suspension of provision, in 2021-22, the patients who 
 previously attended the AMIU have migrated to the Wythenshawe Hospital site and the  
 remainder to Salford Royal (as seen in both bar charts). Attendance at Wythenshawe in  
 2021/22 overall rose from 35% to 49.2%, in Central it went up from 53% to 70% of the  
 population usage and for South up from 53% to 79% when compared with 2019/20. To  
 support the management of these patients it should be noted that the Emergency Nurse 
 Practitioner staff that were based at Altrincham Minor Injuries Unit have been supporting 
 the services at Wythenshawe Hospital ED. This also ensures that with the development of 
 the UTC on the Wythenshawe site that the right staffing mix is in place in the appropriate 
 environment to support patient demand in line with national guidance.  
 
Graph 15: showing Attends at Urgent Care Services by neighbourhood Percentage of each neighbourhood and overall 
attending each site during 2021-22 
Source: Secondary Uses Service 

 

Page 57



  
 

24 
 

Proximity to site affects usage 

9.4 The bulk of Trafford’s attendees at AMIU come from within a much smaller radius than they 
do at other sites. 65% of Trafford patients attending AMIU came from within 2 miles. This is 
a much higher proportion than we see at Wythenshawe (26%), Oxford Road (23%) or TGH 
(46%). It should be noted that Wythenshawe Hospital is 3.4 miles from Altrincham General 
Hospital and that Trafford General Hospital is also 7.1 from Altrincham Hospital (Google 
maps). Graph 16 outlines the proximity to different sites that Trafford patients use and how 
the distance from these sites impacts usage. 

Graph 16: showing proximity to site affects usage  

 

Page 58



  
 

25 
 

 

Use of Urgent services by age 
 
9.5 The usage of urgent care services increases sharply among people over 80 years of age in all 

of Trafford’s neighbourhoods, but in there is a big difference between the North and south 
of the borough in use of urgent care services among people aged 70-79, with much higher 
rates of use in the North.  As seen above, however, there are considerably fewer people 
aged 75+ registered in North PCN. 

 
Graph 17: showing age-specific rate of monthly Urgent Care Services attends per 1,000 population by Trafford 
neighbourhood 

3-month average for January-March 2022 

Source: GM Primary Care Provider Board/GM Integrated Care 

 

9.6 As attendance rates tend to be higher in children and in older people (with protocols for 
 children aged under 5 often requiring attendance at an urgent care service), the chart below 
looks at differences in attendance for children aged under 10, and for people aged 70+  by 
 neighbourhood.  Rates of attendance in children are higher in North and West Trafford, and 
 the attendances in both children and older people were lower in the South.  This is likely to 
 be explained by the lower rate of deprivation in the South. 

Page 59



  
 

26 
 

Graph 18: showing age-specific rate of annual Urgent Care Services attends per 1,000 population by Trafford 
neighbourhood for those aged under 5 years and over 75 years 

Source: Secondary Uses Service 

 

9.7 Graph 19 below shows the age profile of the people attending each site.  The age profile of 
 people from Trafford attending Manchester Royal Infirmary is markedly different from those 
 attending other local hospitals, which is probably explained by the younger age profile of the 
 population in North Trafford, who are more likely to use MRI.  

Graph 19: showing Attends at Urgent Care Services by Age Group 

Percentage of each age group attending each site during April 2021 to March 2022. Please note most children attending the 
Oxford Road site attend the Royal Manchester Children’s hospital on the site instead of Manchester Royal Infirmary.  

Source: Secondary Uses Service 

 

 

9.8 Graph 19a outlines the proportion of 0-4 year old patients attending urgent care services 
and their method of presentation. The highest proportion of presentations is by self-referral 
at 81.7% followed by ambulance at 6.9% and 111 referral at 4.8%. 2.9% of patients are 
referred to urgent care services via primary care.   

 

 

 

Page 60



  
 

27 
 

Graph 19a: outlining the proportion of patients aged 0-4 and their presentation categorisation at an urgent care service 
during 21/22 

 

 
9.9 Graph 19b outlines the chief complaint for patients presenting at urgent care services aged 

0-4 during 21-22. Similarly to other areas there is a high proportion of presentations where 
the chief complaint is not recorded. The second highest complaint is for patients presenting 
with a fever at 16.7% followed by Dyspnea (shortness of breath) at 8.6% and injury of the 
head at 6.2%. To understand these in further detail and the implications clinical records 
would need to be reviewed to understand their appropriateness for the different urgent 
care services.  

 
Graph 19b: outlining the proportion of patients aged 0-4 and their chief complaint on presentation during 21/22 

 
 
9.10  Map 8a outlines the areas of concentration of attends for urgent care services in ages 0-4 by 

LSOA. There is a concentration to the north of the borough for this age range which may be 
consistent with other findings in this report in relation to proximity and usage of services. 

Page 61



  
 

28 
 

This may particularly be the case taking into account the proximity of the north of the 
borough to the RMCH and the Oxford Road campus.  

 
Map 8a: Outlining the areas of high attends at urgent care services by LSOA for 0-4 year olds during 21/22 

 

 

Use of urgent care by age and deprivation 

9.11 The following graphs show the usage by Trafford residents of urgent care by site,  
 deprivation and age.  This shows that Wythenshawe is the most commonly used site, but 
 also tends to be used more by our less deprived population.  The Oxford Road site had the 
 highest proportion of attendances from people in more deprived groups, while attendances 
 at Altrincham MIU were heavily skewed towards the least deprived populations, with a  
 much younger age profile of people attending, including a very high proportion of people 
 aged under 20.  This activity appears to have shifted to Wythenshawe in 2021/22. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 62



  
 

29 
 

Table 4: Site usage by Deprivation and age band 

 

9.12 The tables above (in red) show the percentage of Trafford attenders in each group attending 
 each site, each row adds to 100%. The blue tables below show the percentage of Trafford 
 attendees at each site that came from a given group – the columns add to 100%. So for  
 example, the red tables show that if we look at patients aged 0-4, 48.3% of that group  
 attended Wythenshawe. 

9.13 Table 5 shows that if we look at all the Trafford patients who attended Wythenshawe, 10.9% 
of them were aged 0-4. As discussed above, people are likely to attend their most local site, 
and the deprivation levels of people attending each site reflects  this. AMIU has notably 
higher numbers of attendances from people from the least deprived quintile, also, as a 
minor injuries unit, it is unsurprising that a much higher proportion of people attending are 
under 20. 

 

 

 

 

Page 63



  
 

30 
 

Table 5: showing the levels of usage amongst deprivation quintiles by main urgent care service sites for 2019/2020 & 21/22

 

 

Page 64



  
 

31 
 

Reason for attendance  

9.14 The highest rates of attendance at Urgent Care Services in 2019/20 for all complaints 
(denoted by the darker shading on the map) were from Urmston, Broadheath, Buckslow-St 
Martins and St Mary’s. Lowest attendances were seen from Davyhulme East, Bowdon and 
Hale Central. Of the 94,834 Trafford residents who attended an Urgent Care Centre in 
2019/20, 12,272 (13%) attended at Altrincham.  The least frequently used site was Salford 
Royal, with 6,568 attendances. 

Map 9:  showing distribution of Trafford attendee LSOA, age of attendees and which Urgent Care Service Site attended for 
all complaints – 2019/20 and 2021/22 

Source: Secondary Uses Service 

 

 
9.15 The symptoms and conditions that people display when attending urgent care services vary 
 widely, as can be seen in the pie chart below.  Urgent care services are often very busy, and 
 some symptoms could be a sign of several different underlying conditions. The coding of 
 people’s chief complaint / reason to attend may therefore be affected by the person  
 undertaking the coding or the way that the patient presents.  In a significant number of  
 cases, no chief complaint was recorded.    
 
9.16 The single largest reason for Trafford residents to attend urgent care service in 2019/20 

were coded as injury (28%) followed by not defined, and then cardiovascular 
events/symptoms (including cardiac arrest, chest pain, limb ischemia and palpitation), 
gastrointestinal symptoms and difficulty breathing. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



  
 

32 
 

Graph 20: showing the breakdown of all complaints presenting at Urgent Care Services – 2019/20  
Source: Secondary Uses Service 
 

 

 

9.17 As the numbers attending for different conditions can quickly become quite small, making 
 understanding any patterns difficult, a more detailed analysis was undertaken of the most 
 common reason, other than injury, for people to attend urgent care.  The most common 
 reason was for symptoms such as chest pain or difficulty breathing, which could be signs of a 
 heart attack (but also are common in many less serious conditions). We found that among 
 people presenting with these symptoms in 2019/20, most attended Wythenshawe and  
 Trafford General and there were higher rates from Bucklow-St Martins and Urmston.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



  
 

33 
 

Map 10: showing distribution of Trafford attendee LSOA, age of attendees and which Urgent Care Service Site attended for 
Chest Pain – 2019/20 and 2021/22 

Source: Secondary Uses Service 

 

9.18 In 2021/22, more than half, 53% of the 5,146 people with chest pain attended Wythenshawe 
and attendance at Trafford General fell to around a fifth, 18%. 

 
10.0  When do people attend urgent care services? 
 
10.1 Because urgent care services are open 24/7, there can be an assumption that most activity is 

undertaken out of hours, but this is not the case. The graph below shows the times that 
people arrived at the urgent care centre, with most activity being between 8am and 8 pm. 
Mondays are particularly busy, and Saturdays followed by Sundays are quieter. Most people 
attend, therefore, at times when public transport is likely to be available. These figures will 
be affected by the fact the Trafford General Urgent Treatment Centre is open seven days a 
week, but only  8-8. 

Page 67



  
 

34 
 

Table 6 showing the activity levels across urgent care services broken down by day and time 

 

 

Special Consideration 

Partington & Carrington 

10.2 Given the data above on the particular needs of Partington, with its high levels of  
 deprivation and risk of transport related social exclusion, we have undertaken some detailed 
 work on urgent care needs and usage for this area. Residents of Partington were most likely 
 to attend either Trafford General or Wythenshawe in 2019/20, with low rates of usage of 
 the other sites. 

Graph 23 showing Partington & Carrington 2019-20 Attends by LSOA, Site and Chief Complaints 
Source: Secondary Uses Service 

 

Page 68



  
 

35 
 

10.3 However, attendance from Partington residents shifted away from Trafford General and to 
 Wythenshawe in 2021/22, although these two sites continued to be by far the most  
 frequently used. 
 
 
Graph 24 Partington & Carrington 2021-22 Attends by LSOA, Site and Chief Complaints 
Source: Secondary Uses Service 

 

 
10.4 As described previously, not all urgent care needs require a trip to a physical site or an  
 examination.  People often seek help through going online or calling NHS 111. People in the 
 North and West neighbourhoods are much more likely to call NHS 111 than those in Central 
 or South Trafford.  Use of NHS 111 fluctuates widely over time but the patterns of this  
 fluctuation are the same for all areas of Trafford, even though the volume of calls varies by 
 neighbourhood.   
 
10.5 A quarter of people (25%) from Trafford who ring NHS 111 are recommended to attend A&E 
 (Including ambulance dispatches) compared to 15% of people from Manchester.  However, 
 more people from Trafford (17%) are not recommended to access any other service,  
 compared to 11% from Manchester. The age group for whom most calls are made is for the 
 under 10-year-olds across all of Trafford except the North, where the highest number of  
 calls is in respect of 20–29 year-olds, with the next highest being in under 10s, and 30–39-
 year-olds. The high number of calls regarding children aged under 10 may be because the 
 NHS 111 online service cannot be used for children under 5. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 69



  
 

36 
 

Graph 25 111 calls for the Trafford Neighbourhoods March 2020-September 2022 

 
 

10.6 Trafford Locality usage of 111 services remains one of the lowest across the GM localities 
 however this is consistent with the size of the population when compared to neighbouring 
 localities.  There is little variation across Greater Manchester in the outcome of the calls. 
 
Graph 26 showing call outcomes  from 111 by GM locality  

 

Page 70



  
 

37 
 

10.7 It should be noted that there is an expectation that the call volume to 111 by the 0–9-year-
old could be anticipated to be higher as the 111 online service due to clinical requirements 
does not allow under 5-year-olds to be triaged through the online service.  

 
Graph 27: 111 calls by age band and neighbourhood 

 

 

Map 11: Outlining the volume of 999 calls by incident without a hospital transfer 

 
10.8 Map 11 outlines the call volumes for incidents to 999 without a hospital transfer. As can be 

seen from the map the highest proportion can be identified within the Trafford Park area 
and could be assumed to be linked to the levels if businesses/industrial facilities in the area. 
This is also consistent on Map 11a for incidents that involve a transfer to hospital.  

Page 71



  
 

38 
 

Map 11a: Outlining the volume of 999 calls by incidents a hospital transfer 

 
 

Graph 30 showing call symptoms by group via NHS 111 for Trafford patients 

 

 

 

 

Page 72



  
 

39 
 

11.0 Insight 

11.1 As part of the review, we have also considered previous research insights and outcomes 
from those that may have been undertaken across the Manchester and Trafford system or at 
a Greater Manchester level. This insight will help to provide additional information and 
detail as to the thoughts, approaches and behaviours of patients in relation to urgent care 
services and provision.  

 
11.2 There are a number of key pieces of existing insight that will be outlined within this review 

namely: 
 The Utilisation Management Unit, GM Wide ED Surveys undertaken at Wythenshawe, 

Manchester Royal Infirmary, Royal Manchester Childrens Hospital and North Manchester 
General Hospital in May 2021 

 Healthwatch report – Trafford General Hospital A report looking into the public perception 
of Trafford General Hospital 

 NHS Greater Manchester Stakeholder interviews with residents across 10 GM localities 
 GM UEC Survey November 2021 – December 2021 

 
11.3 This report is the output of the first stage of the review process and outlines a needs 

assessment of the population of Trafford and the outputs of the critical appraisal of the 
current urgent care services being offered in Trafford. In addition to this the iterative report 
will be developed further with supplementary information following a public survey that is 
planned to commence during January 2023 to compliment the needs assessment and critical 
appraisal elements of this review. The public survey will also be supported through a range 
of engagement approaches that will target hard to reach groups and these will be managed 
through specific focus group engagement. 

 
11.4 The survey will focus on a range of questions in relation to patient’s experiences of 

healthcare and specifically around urgent care, same day care and access. Elements of the 
survey will focus on how patients access different services and the use of technology to 
support that access.  

 
11.5 Whilst the survey is not in scope of this initial report the outcomes of the survey and any 

further engagement through focus groups and specific engagement sessions will be 
incorporated into this paper moving forward.  

  
Table 7: showing Key messages from insight previously undertaken in relation to urgent care 

Report  Key Messages from Insight  
The Utilisation 
Management 
Unit, GM Wide ED 
Surveys 
undertaken May 
2021 
 

 The highest proportion (46%) of patients surveyed attended with 
injuries.  

 Of the 779 patients who had contacted a service for advice on the 
same day as the attendance, 80% had been advised to attend. 

 It was not within the scope of this survey to triangulate prior advice 
given with other data sources and therefore the extent to which 
patients and families followed advice is unknown. 

 There was a marked contrast between duration of symptoms in 
adults and children. 24% of adults had symptoms for over one week 
compared to only 10% of children. 

 Patients felt that they needed treatment or investigations for urgent 
or worsening symptoms on the day. This may be the reason why 
other services were not contacted by 60% of patients prior to 

Page 73



  
 

40 
 

attendance. 23% of adults and 17% of children had already been 
seen by a GP or other service for the same problem within the last 
week. 

 Where prior advice had been sought, access to GP advice or 
appointment was not identified as a significant problem. Advice was 
primarily obtained from NHS111 (45% adults and 46% children) 
which resulted in advice to attend ED in more than 50% of cases. 

Healthwatch 
report – Trafford 
General Hospital A 
report looking into 
the public 
perception of 
Trafford General 
Hospital 
 

 a significant proportion of respondents that believed that they could 
use services at the hospital that are in fact not available there. 

 Responses from the survey show us that there is a lot of 
misunderstanding of what an Urgent Care Centre (UCC) is, how it 
operates and when it is open. Worryingly, a small percentage when 
asked the question; “if you or a family member needed urgent care 
in the middle of the night, what would you do”, have stated they 
would go to Trafford General Hospital. An A&E is a 24-hour service, 
whereas the UCC is open from 8am to 8pm 

 The misunderstanding of what an UCC can deal with could have 
potentially negative effects on where people choose to go when 
they are ill or injured. A quarter (25%) did not identify that the 
opening hours are different, between an A&E and an UCC, 10.6% 
thought children and babies could not be treated there, 4.7% 
thought that they were the same just named differently and one 
respondent thought you needed an appointment for the UCC. 

NHS Greater 
Manchester 
Stakeholder 
interviews with 
residents across 
10 GM localities 
 

 GP is embedded in peoples’ consciousness and behaviour, even 
though getting access is seen as a source of frustration for some 

 GPs themselves are held up as heroic but the system and 
infrastructure built around it is heavily criticised 

 A&E is a default for many and is often seen as the quickest path to 
treatment regardless of the wait 

 111 seen as ineffective and most people claim to have lost patience 
with it –   they’re aware of it, many have used it, but the vast 
majority wouldn’t be inclined to do so again 

 the role of pharmacist is unknown – it’s a pretty blank canvas for 
most people and they see it as a retail platform rather than a clinical 
one 

 community nurses were praised by one respondent but no-one else 
had heard of them 

 awareness of UTC/walk-in centres (their existence and their location) 
isn’t high and those who are aware think they are no longer “walk-
in”. But with clear direction regarding what to use them for, they’re 
seen as a really viable alternative to A&E 

GM UEC Survey 
November 2021 – 
December 2021 
 

 Majority felt access to NHS services had become worse since Covid-
19.  

 A higher percentage of those who have long-term health condition 
rate access worse than those with no long-term health condition.  

 One assumption might be that those with long-term health conditions 
may be better able to compare experiences of NHS services pre-and-
’post’ pandemic – and are likely to have accessed the same service on 
a regular basis. 

 Approx. 40% of people who indicated that they or a member of 
their family used A&E, 30% indicated they had not used any other 
services beforehand.   

 People who did use another service, contacted their GP, NHS 111 
phone and NHS 111 online. 

Page 74



  
 

41 
 

 Over 22% of people felt their attendance was inappropriate or 
were unsure. 

 24% of people used NHS 111 Online and 29% of people used NHS 
111 phoneline. Just under half reported a positive experience, the 
rest were split between average to negative.  

 For both NHS 111 Online and phone, the most frequent response 
was advice to attend A&E followed by being advised to book a GP 
appointment or referred to a GP out-of-hours. The least frequently 
occurring response was ‘chose to attend urgent care centre’. 

 60% of respondents were able to contact their GP via digital 
technology. 25% were unable to for a number of reasons such as 
service not offered, no access to technology or a lack of knowledge 
etc. 

 Of the people who could not access due not to knowing how or not 
having the device or technology, people aged 70 and over are 
represented more.  

 70% had a poor or fair experience. 30% rated it good or excellent.  
 Main issues for poor experience: ability to book appointments 

withdrawn, closed temporarily, only available at certain times, poor 
navigation on menus, having to obtain a password in person, limited 
interaction, limited options and limited responses. 

 Positives: Ask My GP rated as easy to use, time-saving, ease of 
sending pictures, easy to book/order routine services e.g., bloods 
and prescriptions. 

 

12.0  Trafford Profile  

Map 12: outlining the Trafford resident profile by ward for 2020 

 

 

Page 75



  
 

42 
 

12.1 The following maps look at age distribution, and it can be seen that this varies considerably 
by ward.  The darker the colour the higher the percentage of the population in the ward 
having the indicator. Protocols for the care of children under 5 mean that they are 
particularly likely to need to be seen at urgent care services rather than being given advice 
online or by phone out of hours. The ward with the highest proportion of those under 15 
years old, over a quarter of the population, is Bucklow-St Martins, and the wards with the 
lowest proportion are Flixton and Urmston, with 18% aged under 15.   

Map 13 : showing distribution of Trafford population aged 0-15 years 

Source: Trafford Data Lab 

 
12.2 The North of the borough has the highest proportion of people of working age with around 

two-thirds of the populations of Clifford, Gorse Hill, and Priory between the ages of 16 and 
64. This compares to around 55% of the populations of Hale Barns and Bowden. 

Map 14: showing distribution of Trafford population aged 16-84 years 

Source: Trafford Data Lab 

 

Page 76



  
 

43 
 

12.3 There is even greater variation by ward as people get older.  Around a quarter of the 
populations of Bowdon and Hale Barns are over 65, compared to around 10% of the people 
in both Clifford and Gorse Hill.  Older people are disproportionately likely to attend urgent 
care sites, due to the increased risk of long-term conditions, complex co-morbidity, and the 
consequences of falls in this population, with the risks from all of these rising sharply in 
people aged over 75. 

 
Map 15: showing distribution of Trafford population aged 65 or more years 

Source: Trafford Data Lab 

 
 

Graph 31: showing population projection for Trafford based on assumed levels of future fertility, mortality and migration  

Source: NOMIS 

 

Page 77



  
 

44 
 

12.4 The population of Trafford at the point of the 2021 census was 235,048 (51% female and 
49% male).  The projection for the population over the next ten years predicts that the 
population of those over 65 will see the most growth with a 24% increase in those over 80. 

 
12.5 There are some characteristics that might be a barrier to residents accessing services. 

Almost 17% of those living in Clifford do not have English as their main language, which is 
considerably higher than any other ward in Trafford.  This is likely to make communication 
with health professionals more difficult, but can also mean that the needs for translation 
services are better understood in this area. People without good English but living in parts of 
Trafford where almost everyone has English as their main language may find themselves to 
be more disadvantaged. Ensuring that everyone has the access they need to translation 
services is an important part of any equality approach. 

 

Map 16: showing distribution of Trafford households with no people in household having English as a main language 

Source: Trafford Data Lab 

 
12.6 While overall, 15% of Trafford’s population describe themselves as being from non-
 white ethnic groups, people from non-white ethnic groups predominantly live in the 
 North of the borough, with 65% of Clifford and 41% of Longford residents coming 
 from non-white ethnic groups.  Hale Barns, in the South of the borough, is the only 
 ward outside the four wards in the North neighbourhood to have more people from 
 non-white groups than the borough average. In Trafford, certain health conditions 
 disproportionately affect certain ethnic groups e.g. diabetes prevalence in South  
 East Asian men, and there is also strong evidence that people from non-white  
 groups receive worse health care than the white population (Midlands and  
 Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit, 2020) and  this may lead to higher needs for 
 urgent care. This is an area were improving and focussing on preventative and  
 planned care may have a much greater impact on the health system within the  
 locality than simply addressing urgent care needs. 

 

 

Page 78



  
 

45 
 

Map 17: showing distribution of Trafford households which are of a non-white ethnic group 

Source: Trafford Data Lab 

 
12.7 The usual method of assessing deprivation is to use the Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD), 

which combines measures in 7 domains including Income, Employment, Education, Health, 
Crime, Barriers to Housing and Services and Living Environment. This then provides a ranking 
for England of the relative deprivation when comparing all Lower Super Output Areas 
(LSOAs), which are small areas of ~1,000 population. In Trafford, Clifford and Bucklow-St 
Martins are the most deprived wards followed by other wards in the North, and St Mary’s. 
Bucklow-St Martins contains one of the most deprived LSOAs in Trafford ranking 490 out of 
32,844 LSOAs in England. Looking at the individual domains, again both Clifford and 
Bucklow-St Martins, followed by other wards in the North and St Mary’s have the highest 
income, employment and child deprivation. Clifford also has a very high  proportion (41%) of 
older people living in an income deprived household, this is followed again by Bucklow-St 
Martins, and Northern wards Longford and Stretford. Health deprivation and disability are 
highest in Bucklow-St Martins followed by Clifford. Only the IMD map is included here as the 
maps for the individual domains in Trafford are very similar to this.  The remaining maps are 
available at Trafford Data Lab  

Map 18: showing level of deprivation by ward measured using the Index of Multiple Deprivation 

Source: Trafford Data Lab 

 

Page 79



  
 

46 
 

The Health of Trafford’s population 

12.8 While health outcomes in Trafford are generally good, especially compared to other 
 boroughs in Greater Manchester, this masks considerable variation across the  
 borough.  Overall, people in the North, and Bucklow St Martins, have worse health 
 than those in the South.  This is more marked for males than females. 
 
Graph 32: showing life expectancy at birth for males and females 2016-2020 

Source: Office for Health Improvement and Disparities 

 

12.9 The top causes for reduced life expectancy in England in those who are the most deprived 
when compared with those who are the least deprived include cardiovascular disease (heart 
disease and stroke), cancer and respiratory disorders (Public Health England, 2018).  The 
table below shows variations in the prevalence of these and other common conditions by 
PCN and by ward (based on the location of the general practice). Some conditions have a 
clear link to deprivation, with higher disease prevalence evident in the population of the 
West PCN, but this is not always the case.  For example, cancer prevalence is highest in Hale 
Barns, one of our least deprived wards, and lowest in Clifford, one of our most deprived.  
This is largely explained by the different age profiles in those wards.  Cancer rates go up 
considerably as people get older, and Hale Barns has much higher rates of older  people than 
Clifford.  In addition, cancer survival rates are generally higher in less deprived populations.  
Hypertension and heart failure also become more common as people get older. Many of 
these conditions, if well managed, should not require frequent attendance at urgent care 
services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 80



  
 

47 
 

Graph 33: showing disease prevalence by PCN: Risk factors for cardiovascular event 

Source: NHS Digital 

 

Graph 34: showing disease prevalence by Ward of GP: Risk factors for cardiovascular event 

Please note that this presents data from GPs located in the ward and that not all wards have a GP located in them. 

Source: NHS Digital 

 

 

 

 

Page 81



  
 

48 
 

Graph 35: showing disease prevalence by PCN: Risk factors for other Urgent Care Services attends 

Source: NHS Digital 

 

Graph 36: showing disease prevalence by ward of GP: Risk factors for other Urgent Care Services attends 

Please note that this presents data from GPs located in the ward and that not all wards have a GP located in them. 

Source: NHS Digital 

 

 

13.0 Summary  

13.1 Overall, attendances for urgent care have dropped in Trafford between 2019/20 and 
 2021/22 (mainly due to the impact of the Covid Pandemic, but we are starting to see 

Page 82



  
 

49 
 

 levels return to pre pandemic activity), but the main symptoms for which people  
 present are similar, as are the patterns of usage by area (with a slight fall in the  
 relative rate of attends from Bucklow St Martins.) 
 
13.2 In general, more deprived areas have higher rates of urgent care centre usage, and this is 

the pattern seen in Trafford, where overall, rates of attendance at urgent care services are 
lower among people in the South neighbourhood. Rates of attendance at urgent care 
services is highest in older people, and this increase starts at a younger age in the North than 
the South of the borough. 

 
13.3 Most people use urgent care between 8am – 8pm, with highest attendances on  
 Mondays and lowest on Saturdays, and to a lesser extent, Sundays.  Therefore, most 
 attendances are at times when public transport is available.  However, it is not  
 thought that the availability of public transport is the reason for attending at these 
 times but this is more in line with the availability of services such as the UTC at  
 TGH.  
 
13.4 Most of Trafford’s population has good access to urgent care sites, either through good 

public transport links or because of high rates of car ownership.  There is a concern about 
access from Partington (Bucklow St Martins) and this is exacerbated by the current lack of 
pharmacy services on Saturday afternoons and Sundays in that area.  Parts of West St 
Mary’s, South Sale Moor and South Altrincham are also at transport related risk of social 
exclusion. 

 
13.5 Unsurprisingly, people tend to go to the urgent care site that is closest to them, but the 

proportion of people who live within 2 miles of the site they attended varies greatly.  Almost 
two thirds (65%) of people using Altrincham MIU live within 2 miles of it, whereas just under 
half (46%) of people using Trafford General and around a quarter of those using 
Wythenshawe and MRI/Oxford Rd (26% and 23% respectively) lived within 2 miles of their 
chosen site.  Most of the people who had gone to Altrincham in 2019/20 went to 
Wythenshawe in 21/22.    

 
13.6 GP activity has increased sharply since the pandemic, with a substantial increase in the 

number of people having same day appointments.  Trafford patients are slightly more likely 
to see a GP rather than another health care professional when visiting general practice than 
the national picture, and have a similar proportion of face-to-face consultations.  The rate of 
home visits made by GPs is substantially higher in Trafford than nationally. 

 
13.7 Use of the NHS 111 services fluctuates considerably over time, but all four neighbourhoods 

show the same pattern of fluctuation, although usage is much higher in North and West 
Trafford than in Central or South.  In all of Trafford except the North, the age group for 
whom most calls were made was for children under 10. In the North, the most frequent 
age group was people aged 20-29, followed by children under 10 and those aged 30-
39. 

 
13.8 All other things being equal, we would expect to see higher rates of attendance  
 among people living in more deprived areas, and those with more older people, and 
 higher numbers of attendances from people in more densely populated areas.   
 Identifying where sites are best placed requires careful balancing of these factors.  
 

Page 83



  
 

50 
 

13.9 Needs for urgent care can be highly influenced by the quality and quantity of  
 planned and preventative care provision, and building up community and primary 
 health care services, and reducing inequalities in access to these, should reduce  
 urgent care needs and improve population health. 
 
14.0 Key Findings 
 
14.1 Key Messages from the Review are: - 
 

 Overall, attendances for urgent care  dropped in Trafford between 2019/20 and 2021/22 
(mainly due to the impact of the Covid pandemic, but we are starting to see levels return to 
pre-pandemic activity), 

 In general, in the UK, more deprived areas have higher rates of urgent care service usage, 
and this is the pattern seen in Trafford 

 Rates of attendance at urgent care services are highest in older people, and this increase 
starts at a younger age in the North than the South of the borough. 

 Most people use urgent care between 8am – 8pm, with highest attendances on Mondays 
and lowest on Saturdays, and to a lesser extent, Sundays.   

 Wythenshawe is the most commonly used site, but also tends to be used more by our less 
deprived population. 

 Rates of attendance in children are higher in North and West Trafford, and the attendances 
in both children and older people were lower in the South. This is likely to be explained by 
the lower rate of deprivation in the South. 

 Most of Trafford’s population has good access to urgent care sites, either through good 
public transport links or because of high rates of car ownership.   

 Trafford has the second-best rate of access to hospitals in GM based on public transport or 
walking with 88.4% of the population within 30 minutes by public transport of a hospital 
site.  

 People tend to go to the urgent care site that is closest to them, but the proportion of 
people who live within 2 miles of the site they attended varies greatly, as some sites cater 
for a much wider geographic area.  

 GP activity has increased sharply since the pandemic, with a substantial increase in the 
number of people having same day appointments.  

 Use of the NHS 111 service fluctuates considerably over time, but all four neighbourhoods 
show the same pattern of fluctuation, although usage is much higher in North and West 
Trafford than in Central or South.   

 We would expect to see higher rates of attendance among people living in more deprived 
areas, and those with more older people, and higher numbers of attendances from people in 
more densely populated areas.   

 There are three services within Trafford that do not currently meet national guidelines or 
requirements 

 

15.0 Recommendations 

1) To note the content of this report and progress to date 

 

Page 84



  
 

51 
 

16.0 Glossary 

Abbreviation Description 
ED/A&E Emergency Department/Accident and Emergency 
OOH Out of Hours 
SDEC  Same Day Emergency Care 
GP General Practitioner  
NHS National Health Service 
MFT Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust 
TLCO Trafford Local Care Organisation 
MIU Minor Injuries Unit 
UTC Urgent Treatment Centre 
LCAS  Local Clinical Assessment Service  
ATT Alternative to Transfer 
CUES  Urgent Eye care Services 
GMMH Greater Manchester Mental Health 
NHS 111 Telephone/Online 
NMGH North Manchester General Hospital 
RMCH Royal Manchester Children’s Hospital 
TPAS   Trafford Patient Assessment Service 

UCC Urgent Care Centre 
TGH Trafford General Hospital 
ICB Integrated Care Board 
GM Greater Manchester 

 
17.0 Appendices 

Appendix A - outlining current services and description of services 

 

Page 85



  
 

52 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 86



Trafford Locality Urgent Care Review
Key Messages

January 2023

P
age 87



• In general, in the UK, more deprived areas have higher rates of urgent care service usage, and this is the pattern seen in Trafford (see slide 5) 

• Rates of attendance at urgent care services are highest in older people, and this increase starts at a younger age in the North than the South of the borough. (see slide 5 
& 6) 

• Most people use urgent care between 8am – 8pm, with highest attendances on Mondays and lowest on Saturdays, and to a lesser extent, Sundays. (see slide 7)    

• Wythenshawe is the most commonly used site, but also tends to be used more by our less deprived population. (see slide 6) 

• Rates of attendance in children are higher in North and West Trafford, and the attendances in both children and older people were lower in the South. This is likely to be 
explained by the lower rate of deprivation in the South. 

• Most of Trafford’s population has good access to urgent care sites, either through good public transport links or because of high rates of car ownership. (see slide 11) 

• Trafford has the second-best rate of access to hospitals in GM based on public transport or walking with 88.4% of the population within 30 minutes by public transport of 
a hospital site. (see slide 11) 

• People tend to go to the urgent care site that is closest to them, but the proportion of people who live within 2 miles of the site they attended varies greatly, as some sites 
cater for a much wider geographic area. (see slide 6) 

• GP activity has increased sharply since the pandemic, with a substantial increase in the number of people having same day appointments. (see slide 13) 

• Use of the NHS 111 service fluctuates considerably over time, but all four neighbourhoods show the same pattern of fluctuation, although usage is much higher in North 
and West Trafford than in Central or South. (see slide 15) 

• We would expect to see higher rates of attendance among people living in more deprived areas, and those with more older people, and higher numbers of attendances 
from people in more densely populated areas. (see slide 8)  

• There are three services within Trafford that do not currently meet national guidelines or requirements (Mastercall TPAS/Mastercall ATT and Altrincham Minor Injuries 
Unit) (see slide 17) 

Key Messages
• Overall, attendances for urgent care  dropped in Trafford between 2019/20 and 2021/22 (mainly due to the impact of the Covid pandemic, 

but we are starting to see levels return to pre-pandemic activity), (see slide 3) we can also see the presenting conditions (see slide 4)

P
age 88



Urgent Care attends at ED/UTC/MIU

P
age 89



Presenting complaint for all urgent care attendances

P
age 90



Trafford attends by age and site for all complaints

P
age 91



Site Usage by the different Neighbourhoods in Trafford

P
age 92



Attendance times across the main acute sites for urgent care

P
age 93



Breakdown of site attendance by age and deprivation quintile

P
age 94



Physical Health service locations

P
age 95



Virtual and Visiting Health Services available 
to Trafford Patients

P
age 96



Access to Hospital provision through walking or 
public transport within 30 mins

P
age 97



Transport Related social exclusion  

P
age 98



Number of Appointments at GP Practices by time 
to appointment

P
age 99



Trafford GP Practices activity 21/22

P
age 100



NHS 111 Call activity by Trafford Neighbourhood

P
age 101



NHS 111 Call volume by age band across the 
four Neighbourhoods

P
age 102



Service  Rationale 

Altrincham Minor Injuries Unit 
(AMIU) 
 

National guidance stipulates that Minor Injuries Units should no longer be provided within the NHS as outlined by the NHS Long Term Plan and guidance for Urgent 
Treatment Centres. UTC guidelines outline that services previously identified as Minor Injuries Units should either be changed to Urgent Treatment Centres, primary 
care hubs or the ongoing delivery of service reconsidered. 

Mastercall TPAS  Whilst it is a requirement for localities to have a clinical assessment service, Trafford commissions a clinical assessment service as part of a GM wide commissioned 
service and has an additional service called the Trafford Patient Assessment Service to support those patients who would have been referred to the UTC at TGH.  

Mastercall ATT  This service has been in place for a number of years and provides alternatives to conveyance for ambulance crews to refer to. This supports the wider urgent care 
system in reducing the volume of conveyances to ED and whilst not a requirement contributes significantly to the reduction of ED activity.  

Identified services outside of or additional to National Guidance/Requirements

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 
Report to:  Health Scrutiny Committee  
Date:    18th January 2023 

Report for:   Information 
Report of:  Gareth James, Trafford Deputy Place Lead for Health 

and Care Integration 

 
Report Title 

 

Integrated Care System Update 

 

Summary 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide an update to Scrutiny on recent 
developments across the Greater Manchester Integrated Care system that affect the 
Trafford Locality. The report covers the latest update on the development of the GM 

operating model including agreement of locality budgets and describes the next 
steps to confirm locality governance arrangements. 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

Health Scrutiny are asked to note the content of this report and progress to date 
 

 

Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 

Name: Gareth James, Trafford Deputy Place Lead for Health and Care 
Integration 

 
 

Introduction 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update to Health Scrutiny Committee 

on recent developments across the Greater Manchester Integrated Care 

system that affect the Trafford Locality. 

 

2. The report covers the latest update on the development of the GM operating 

model including agreement of locality budgets and describes the next steps to 

confirm locality governance arrangements. 

 

 

NHS GM Operating Model 

3. Following the phase 6 staff consultation, colleagues have slotted into the 

majority of sub-board level leadership roles. A Mutually Agreed Resignation 

Scheme (MARS) is now running, and eligible colleagues have until 19 January 

Page 105

Agenda Item 8



2023 to submit an application. Across GM there is a significant level of financial 

risk to the planned financial break-even on 31 March 2023. It is hoped that the 

MARS will contribute to recurrent savings without the need to enforce 

compulsory redundancies. 

 

4. As we reported in December, although this is a positive development giving the 

opportunity to staff who want to leave the organisation to move on, this has 

delayed the final agreement of functional operating models and subsequent 

structures. The revised timeline is reflected in the following diagram reflecting 

that the programme to agree the operating model will not finish until July 2023. 

 

 

 

5. During the period of the MARS a vacancy pause has been implemented. This 

does not mean that there will be zero recruitment with a small number of 

business-critical roles expected to be recruited to (business critical defined as 

one that if not filled could cause significant clinical, financial or reputational risk 

or damage to the organisation). 

 

6. The Secretary of State for Health and Social Care has written to all ICB chairs 

and chief officers asking that they publish an organogram, including the 

breakdown of staffing numbers and costs. This ask supports the Health and 

Social Care Departments’ commitment to transparency so the public and those 

on the front line understand how NHS money is spent and make connections 

between the different organisations as we work increasingly as systems rather 

than individual organisations. The GM organogram was submitted on 6 January 

2022 and has been published on the NHS GM website. The information can be 

accessed via this link (https://gmintegratedcare.org.uk/nhs-gm-organogram/). 

Page 106

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgmintegratedcare.org.uk%2Fnhs-gm-organogram%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cgareth.james1%40nhs.net%7C9e0c9c905adc405406f508daf28d27b9%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638088985309853783%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NxOhN1lqY3i%2FjF3ZeT1FdXRq61Utur24yxnm4pDf5LQ%3D&reserved=0


 

Locality Budget Allocation 2022/23 

 

7. Last month we reported that localities had received 2022/23 draft budgets in 

respect of both locality operating costs and service level budgets that will be 

delegated. We continue to work through the detail of both budgets with an 

update as follows. 

 

Operating Costs  

 

8. A methodology for locality allocations has been developed to incorporate both 

a fixed envelope to reflect core responsibilities (£2.5m per locality) and a 

variable allocation based on weighted populations (£5 per weighted head of 

population). Based on this methodology, Trafford locality will receive an 

allocation of £3.702 million of the total £41.697 million operating costs 

delegated to GM localities. 

 

9. In addition to the information provided last month, the following clarification has 

now been received from GM: 

 

 Administrative non-pay costs; all significant administration non-pay costs 

will be paid for from central budgets (for example rent, IT, HR and 

training). 

 Safeguarding; medical salary/sessional costs associated with 

safeguarding are excluded from locality budgets.  

 Medical leadership; this budget is being consolidated and will be 

confirmed as an additional allocation early in the new-year. 

 Continuing Healthcare (CHC); the full spectrum of CHC needs to be 

managed within localities. This will be reviewed over the next 12 months. 

 

10. The locality leadership team is working through the guidance provided to agree 

the structures required to deliver against delegations although there remains 

an element of uncertainty for some functions due to the current pause following 

implementation of the MARS. 

 

11. Should there be an excess of staff in localities following the MARS process and 

subsequent agreement of structures, following a further consultation, some 

staff might move to a central GM deployment register with costs being borne 

centrally. 

 

12. Localities are now asked to confirm that they can operate within this allocation 

and we expect to conclude this before the end of January. Although there will 

no specific ‘check and challenge’ process there will be ongoing work to support 

improved consistency in job bandings and roles across NHS GM. 

 

 

Page 107



Service Budget Delegation 

 

13. Delegated service budgets for the period July 2022 to March 2023 have also 

been issued based on the following: 

 

 Budget alignment principles agreed by the GM Joint Planning and 

Delivery Committee. 

 GM planning assumptions in line with national planning guidance. 

 

14. Interpretation of the budget alignment has been done centrally and localities 

are asked to validate this based on local understanding of the operating model. 

 

15. The GM Target Operating Model sets out clearly that regardless of whether 

funds flow via Trusts, Localities or GPs/PCNs, they: 

 

“must be ‘brought to the table’ [i.e. Locality Board] to identify how that resource, 

when added to money sitting with other Trusts, organisations or sectors, can 

be used collectively to achieve maximum productivity, necessary cost saving 

and contribute most effectively to achieving the quadruple aim.” 
 

16. In keeping with the operating model, we will continue with our agreed approach 

of aligned reporting to the locality board to ensure that we provide the rounded 

picture of locality based services and costs. In particular the Trafford locality 

Board (The board) needs to have clear sight of financial and performance 

information in respect of community services to support our integrated way of 

working. 

 

17. The following budget information reflects the values held in the ICB ledger and 

are, therefore, only nine months of the annual spend. Budgets have been 

identified by the categories in the table below. Broadly the values reflect the 

costs of services although more granular analysis is required to ensure all 

VCSE services are captured, ensuring urgent care services and exclusions 

under personalised care are identified.  

 

 

 

18. A further update will be provided to the board in February when we hope to be 

in a position to be able to formally accept the delegated budget. 

Page 108



 

 

Trafford Locality Governance 

 

19. In December 2022 the board agreed to permanently implement the Trafford 

place leadership model (previously agreed holding position) and a process and 

timeline to agree our locality governance model. 

 

20. Various potential governance arrangements are being considered and it was 

recognised that it was likely that we would need to implement a combination of 

more than one of the following options: 

 

 Option 1 – Enhance current consultative forum 

 Option 2 – Incorporate section 75 arrangements 

 Option 3 – ICB committee 

 Option 4 – Joint committee (under section 65Z5) 

 

21. The board were also provided with a summary of the legal advice received to 

date along with advantages and disadvantages of each model. The board 

agreed to continue to seek legal advice, in particular, with the development of 

a refreshed terms of reference. The detail of the options along with the legal 

advice would be considered by the partner task and finish group with preferred 

options being brought to January meeting of the board. 

 

22. This would have enabled the Trafford governance proposal to be submitted to 

the ICB for approval in February. However, the locality leadership team now 

propose that further work will be required in the coming weeks and, therefore, 

that the board considers the preferred option in February 2023. This would 

mean that our submission to the ICB would be in March, along with 4 other 

localities. The reasons for this additional time are as follows: 

 

 Legal advice, including draft terms of reference will be received week 

beginning 9 January. 

 The task and finish group will have opportunity to review submissions 

made by other localities. 

 There remains considerable work to agree sub-TLB governance 

arrangements. 

 

23. The board currently operates with a joint chairing arrangement between Chair 

of Trafford GP Board and the Leader of Trafford Borough Council. Our revised 

terms of reference will propose a model for chairing from April 2023 onwards. 

Members of the board will be aware that there has recently been a change in 

the leadership of the council. It is, therefore, proposed that the new Council 

Leader, Tom Ross, undertakes the joint chair role during the period January to 

March 2023, pending the new arrangements for our local governance model 

being implemented. 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



Trafford Scrutiny Committee 2022/23 Work Programme 

 

Wednesday 1 March 2023 – 6:30 p.m., Committee Rooms 2&3, Trafford Town Hall 

Report submission deadline – midday on Tuesday 21 February 2023 

Item Information Executive 

Member(s) 

Lead Officer(s) Comments 

Addressing of Health 

Inequalities 

To look at the progress made during 

the year to tackle Health inequalities 

and to look at plans to address 

inequalities in 2023/24. 

  In addition to being at this 

meeting all reports to Health 

Scrutiny require author to state 

how the work helps to tackle 

health inequalities.  

National Legislation 

changes to Care 

Contributions and the Care 

Cap.  

 Councillor Carter   

 

Elective  

To receive a report on performance 

for Elective procedures following the 

pandemic. 

   

 

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	5 CANCER DIAGNOSIS
	6 ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE MISUSE
	7 TRAFFORD LOCALITY URGENT CARE NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND CRITICAL APPRAISAL SCRUTINY
	Urgent Care Services Review Key Graphs

	8 ICS - UPDATE
	9 WORK PROGRAMME 22/23

